# PROSPECTUS Alternative Strategies Income Fund

# Shares of Beneficial Interest \$5,000 minimum purchase October 1, 2023

Alternative Strategies Income Fund (the "Fund") is continuously offered, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company, that is operated as an interval fund.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus concisely provides the information that a prospective investor should know about the Fund before investing. You are advised to read this prospectus carefully and to retain it for future reference. Additional information about the Fund, including a Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") dated October 1, 2023, has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The SAI is available upon request and without charge by writing the Fund at c/o Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC, P.O. Box 541150, Omaha, Nebraska 68154, or by calling toll-free 1-833-860-1407. The table of contents of the SAI appears on page 33 of this prospectus. You may request the Fund's SAI, annual and semi-annual reports when available, and other information about the Fund or make shareholder inquiries by calling 1-833-860-1407 or by visiting <a href="http://www.ltafx.com">http://www.ltafx.com</a>. The SAI, material incorporated by reference and other information about the Fund, is also available on the SEC's website at <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>. The address of the SEC's website is provided solely for the information of prospective shareholders and is not intended to be an active link.

*Investment Objective*. The Fund's investment objective is to seek attractive risk-adjusted returns with low to moderate volatility and low correlation to the broader markets, through a concentrated alternative investment approach with an emphasis on income generation.

Securities Offered. The Fund engages in a continuous offering of three classes of shares of the Fund: Class A, Class C and Class I shares. The Fund has registered 5,000,000 shares and is authorized as a Delaware statutory trust to issue an unlimited number of shares. The Fund is offering to sell, through its distributor, under the terms of this prospectus, 5,000,000 shares of beneficial interest less the amount of shares sold to date, at net asset value plus the applicable sales load. As of June 30, 2023, the Fund's net asset value per share was \$4.88, \$4.62, and \$4.93 for Class A shares, Class C shares and Class I shares, respectively. The maximum sales load imposed on purchases is 4.25% of the amount invested for Class A shares, Class C and Class I shares are not subject to sales charges. The minimum initial investment by a shareholder for Class A shares is \$5,000, Class C shares is \$2,500 and for Class I is \$100,000. Subsequent investments may be made with at least \$100 under the Fund's automatic investment program. Subsequent investment not made pursuant to the automatic investment program must be made with at least \$1,000. The Fund is offering to sell its shares, on a continual basis, through its distributor. The distributor is not required to sell any specific number or dollar amount of the Fund's shares, but will use its best efforts to sell the shares. Funds received will be invested promptly and no arrangements have been made to place such funds in an escrow, trust or similar account. During the continuous offering, shares will be sold at the net asset value of the Fund next determined plus the applicable sales load. See "Plan of Distribution." The Fund's continuous offering is expected to continue in reliance on Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933 until the Fund has sold shares in an amount equal to approximately \$5 billion.

The shares have no history of public trading, nor is it intended that the shares will be listed on a public exchange at this time. Investing in the Fund's shares involves risks. See "Risk Factors" below in this prospectus.

Investment Adviser SCG Asset Management, LLC (the "Adviser")

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	1
SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES	5
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS	6
THE FUND	12
USE OF PROCEEDS	12
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE, POLICIES AND STRATEGIES	12
RISK FACTORS	
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	19
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	21
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	22
QUARTERLY REPURCHASES OF SHARES	22
DISTRIBUTION POLICY	24
DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT POLICY	24
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX MATTERS	25
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHARES	26
ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS IN THE DECLARATION OF TRUST	27
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	
PURCHASE TERMS	
LEGAL MATTERS	32
REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS	32
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	32
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	33
PRIVACY NOTICE	34

# PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary does not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in the shares. You should review the more detailed information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and in the Statement of Additional Information, particularly the information set forth under the heading "Risk Factors."

**The Fund.** Alternative Strategies Income Fund is a continuously offered, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company. See "The Fund." The Fund is an interval fund that will offer to make quarterly repurchases of shares at net asset value. See "Quarterly Repurchases of Shares."

**Investment Objective and Policies.** The Fund's investment objective is to seek attractive risk-adjusted returns with low to moderate volatility and low correlation to the broader markets, through a concentrated alternative investment approach with an emphasis on income generation.

**Investment Strategy.** Under normal market conditions, the Fund will seek to provide attractive risk adjusted returns by taking advantage of volatility in the equity markets. The Fund's adviser seeks to construct a diversified portfolio of structured notes in which the individual portfolio investments do not exhibit significant correlation to each other and do not draw down losses simultaneously. The adviser's strategy centers around creating optionality by laddering short-term structured notes (that is, purchasing notes with different maturity dates) which can generate attractive coupon yields when the underlying reference asset trades within a predetermined price range. Each investment seeks to generate income while providing a cushion before loss of principal can occur (as discussed below).

An example of an investment that the Fund expects to invest in is a structured note linked to the performance of an individual common stock. The Fund will invest primarily in such structured notes. To illustrate, the Fund may purchase a structured note issued by a third-party issuer with a twelve-month maturity, quarterly observation dates and a 50% barrier, which references the performance of a common stock. Each quarter on the specified observation date, the coupon (that is, interest) will be paid to the Fund by the issuer if the reference common stock trades within the predetermined price range (i.e., above the 50 % barrier in this instance and below a specified upper limit). If, on a particular observation date, the price of the reference common stock breaches the upper limit, the note will be called by the issuer, and the coupon and principal paid to the Fund by the issuer. If, on a particular observation date (not the maturity date), the reference common stock trades below the barrier, no coupon will be paid in that period and the note will remain outstanding.

At maturity, if the closing price of the reference common stock is above the barrier, the full amount of principal and coupon will be paid to the Fund by the issuer, and in most instances previously missed coupons will be paid as well. Conversely, if at maturity, the price of the reference common stock trades below the barrier, it will result in a loss of the amount of principal paid to the Fund by the issuer in an amount proportionate to the decline in the price of the reference common stock. To help to minimize overall downside risk for the Fund's portfolio, the Fund seeks to invest in 20-40 short-term structured notes that are diversified across industry, company, observation dates, maturity dates, barrier levels and issuers. The number of structured notes held by the Fund at any one time may vary and may be less than 20 or more than 40 from time to time.

The Fund will primarily purchase structured notes from counterparty issuers that are rated investment grade or better or issuers that are fully guaranteed by an investment grade rated parent company. At the time of investment, The Fund will not have (i) more than 10% of its assets in structured notes issued by counterparty issuers that are unrated or rated below investment grade; and (ii) more than 5% of the Fund's assets invested in any single counterparty issuer that is unrated or rated below investment grade.

The Adviser will invest in structured notes that have individual domestic and foreign equity securities, baskets of several equity securities, market indices and commodities as their reference assets. The Adviser may enter in swap agreements that have similar investment characteristics to the structured notes in which the Fund directly invests.

**Investment Adviser and Management Fee.** SCG Asset Management, LLC, the investment adviser of the Fund, is registered with the SEC as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Adviser"). The Adviser was formed and commenced operations in 2021. The Adviser is entitled to receive a fee calculated and payable monthly at the annual rate of 1.50% of the average daily value of the Fund's daily net assets.

The Adviser and the Fund have entered into an expense limitation and reimbursement agreement (the "Expense Limitation Agreement") under which the Adviser has agreed contractually to waive its fees and to pay or absorb the ordinary operating expenses of the Fund (excluding front-end or contingent deferred loads, taxes, leverage interest, borrowing interest, brokerage commissions, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization, dividend expense on securities sold short, acquired (underlying) fund fees and expenses or extraordinary expenses such as litigation), to the extent that they exceed 3.00%, 3.65% and 2.75% per annum of the Fund's average daily net assets attributable to Class A, Class C shares and Class I shares, respectively (the "Expense Limitation"). In consideration of the Adviser's agreement to limit the Fund's expenses, the Fund has agreed to repay the Adviser in the amount of any

fees waived and Fund expenses paid or absorbed, subject to the limitations that: (1) the reimbursement for fees and expenses will be made only if payable not more than three years from when they were incurred; and (2) the reimbursement may not be made if it would cause the Expense Limitation to be exceeded. The Expense Limitation Agreement will remain in effect at least until October 31, 2024, unless and until the Fund's Board of Trustees (the "Board") approves its modification or termination. The Expense Limitation Agreement may be terminated only by the Board on 60 days written notice to the Adviser. After October 31, 2024 the Expense Limitation Agreement may be renewed at the Adviser's and Board's discretion. See "Management of the Fund."

Administrator, Accounting Agent and Transfer Agent. Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC ("UFS") serves as the administrator, accounting agent and transfer agent of the Fund. See "Management of the Fund."

**Distribution Fees.** The Class C shares pay the distributor a distribution fee (the "Distribution Fee") that will accrue at an annual rate equal to 0.75% of the Fund's average daily net assets attributable to Class C shares and is payable on a quarterly basis. Class A and Class I shares are not subject to a Distribution Fee. See "Plan of Distribution."

Closed-End Fund Structure. Closed-end funds differ from open end management investment companies (commonly referred to as mutual funds) in that closed-end funds do not typically redeem their shares at the option of the shareholder. Rather, closed-end fund shares typically trade in the secondary market via a stock exchange. Unlike many closed-end funds, however, the Fund's shares will not be listed on a stock exchange. Instead, the Fund provides limited liquidity to shareholders by offering to repurchase a limited amount of shares (at least 5%) quarterly, which is discussed in more detail below. An investment in the Fund is suitable only for investors who can bear the risks associated with the limited liquidity of the shares and should be viewed as a long-term investment. The Fund, similar to a mutual fund, is subject to continuous asset in-flows, although not subject to the continuous out-flows.

Share Classes. The Fund offers three different classes of shares: Class A, Class C and Class I shares. The Fund began continuously offering its common shares on September 28, 2010. As of December 30, 2014, the Fund simultaneously redesigned its issued and outstanding common shares as Class A shares and created its Class C shares. As October 31, 2016, the Fund simultaneously redesigned its issued and outstanding common shares as Class A shares, Class C shares and created its Class I shares. An investment in any share class of the Fund represents an investment in the same assets of the Fund. However, the purchase restrictions and ongoing fees and expenses for each share class are different. The fees and expenses for the Fund are set forth in "Summary of Fund Expenses." If an investor wishes to invest in the Fund through a financial intermediary, and is eligible to invest in more than one class of shares, the intermediary may help determine which share class is appropriate for that investor. When selecting a share class, you should consider which share classes are available to you, how much you intend to invest, how long you expect to own shares, and the total costs and expenses associated with a particular share class. Each investor's financial considerations are different. You should speak with your financial advisor to help you decide which share class is best for you. Not all financial intermediaries offer all classes of shares. If your financial intermediary offers more than one class of shares, you should carefully consider which class of shares to purchase. All share classes may not be available for purchase in all states.

**Investor Suitability.** An investment in the Fund involves a considerable amount of risk. It is possible that you will lose money. An investment in the Fund is suitable only for investors who can bear the risks associated with the limited liquidity of the shares and should be viewed as a long-term investment. Before making your investment decision, you should (i) consider the suitability of this investment with respect to your investment objectives and personal financial situation and (ii) consider factors such as your personal net worth, income, age, risk tolerance and liquidity needs. The Fund may invest up to 35% of its total assets in private investment funds, including up to 15% in hedge funds. An investment in these private funds may be riskier than in publicly traded funds.

**Repurchases of Shares.** The Fund is an interval fund and, as such, has adopted a fundamental policy to make quarterly repurchase offers, at net asset value, of no less than 5% of the shares outstanding. There is no guarantee that shareholders will be able to sell all of the shares they desire in a quarterly repurchase offer, although each shareholder will have the right to require the Fund to purchase up to and including 5% of such shareholder's shares in each quarterly repurchase. Limited liquidity will be provided to shareholders only through the Fund's quarterly repurchases. See "Quarterly Repurchases of Shares."

# **Summary of Risks**

Investing in the Fund involves risks, including the risk that you may receive little or no return on your investment or that you may lose part or all of your investment. Therefore, before investing you should carefully consider the following risks that you assume when you invest in the Fund's shares. You assume these risks as a result of the Fund's investments. See "Risk Factors."

Structured Note Risk. The Fund will primarily invest in structured notes. The structured notes may include investments in structured products, securitizations and other asset-backed securities. Among other risks, the notes (i) are subject to the risks associated with the underlying assets; (ii) will often be leveraged, which will generally magnify the opportunities for gain and risk of loss; (iii) are highly complex, which may cause disputes as to their terms and impact the valuation and liquidity of such positions; and (iv) often contain significant obstacles to asserting "putback" or similar claims against the notes.

**Common Stock Risk.** The value of the structured notes held by the Fund will fluctuate based on changes in the value of the underlying reference equity securities. Common stock prices can fall rapidly in response to developments affecting a specific company or industry, or to changing economic, political, or market conditions.

**Fixed Income Risk.** Typically, a rise in interest rates causes a decline in the value of fixed income securities. In general, the market price of fixed income securities with longer maturities will increase or decrease more in response to changes in interest rates than shorter-term securities. Other risk factors include credit risk (the debtor may default), extension risk (an issuer may exercise its right to repay principal on a fixed rate obligation held by the Fund later than expected), and prepayment risk (the debtor may pay its obligation early, reducing the amount of interest payments). These risks could affect the value of a particular investment by the Fund, possibly causing the Fund's share price and total return to be reduced and fluctuate more than other types of investments.

Junk Bond Risk. Lower-quality fixed income securities, known as "high yield" or "junk" bonds, present greater risk than bonds of higher quality, including an increased risk of default. An economic downturn or period of rising interest rates could adversely affect the market for these bonds and reduce the Fund's ability to sell its bonds. The lack of a liquid market for these bonds could decrease the Fund's share price.

**Foreign Risk.** The Fund may invest in structured notes that have foreign equity securities as their reference asset. Investment exposure to foreign securities involves risks of adverse fluctuations in foreign currency values, adverse political, social, and economic developments, less liquidity, greater volatility, less developed or less efficient trading markets, political instability and differing auditing and legal standards.

**Commodities Risk.** The Fund may invest in structured notes that have commodities as their reference asset. Investment exposure to the commodities markets may subject the Fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. Commodity prices may be influenced by unfavorable weather, animal and plant disease, geologic and environmental factors as well as changes in government regulation such as tariffs, embargoes or burdensome production rules and restrictions.

**Issuer Risk.** The value of a specific security can perform differently from the market as a whole for reasons related to the issuer, such as management performance, financial leverage and reduced demand for the issuer's goods and services. The Fund's performance may be more sensitive to any single economic, business, political or regulatory occurrence than the value of shares of a diversified investment company because as a non-diversified fund, the Fund may invest more than 5% of its total assets in the securities of one or more issuers.

**Leveraging Risk.** The use of leverage, such as borrowing money to purchase securities, will cause the Fund to incur additional expenses and magnify the Fund's gains or losses.

Liquidity Risk. There is currently no secondary market for the shares and the Fund expects that no secondary market will develop. Limited liquidity is provided to shareholders only through the Fund's quarterly repurchase offers for no less than 5% of the shares outstanding at net asset value. There is no guarantee that shareholders will be able to sell all of the shares they desire in a quarterly repurchase offer. The Fund's structured notes and other investments are also subject to liquidity risk. Liquidity risk exists when particular investments of the Fund would be difficult to purchase or sell, possibly preventing the Fund from selling such illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price, or possibly requiring the Fund to dispose of other investments at unfavorable times or prices in order to satisfy its obligations.

**New Adviser Risk.** The Adviser is a newly formed entity, and it has not previously managed a closed-end fund. As a result, investors do not have a long-term track record from which to judge the Adviser and the Adviser may not achieve the intended result in managing the Fund. Closed-end funds and their advisers are subject to restrictions and limitations imposed by the 1940 Act and the Internal Revenue Code.

Market Risk. An investment in the Fund's shares is subject to investment risk, including the possible loss of the entire principal amount invested. An investment in the Fund's shares represents an indirect investment in the securities owned by the Fund. The value of these securities, like other market investments, may move up or down, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably. The value of your investment in the Fund is based on the market prices of the securities the Fund holds. These prices change daily due to economic and other events that affect markets generally, as well as those that affect particular regions, countries, industries, companies or governments. The increasing interconnectivity between global economies and financial markets increases the likelihood that events or conditions in one region or financial market may adversely impact issuers in a different country, region or financial market. Securities in the Fund's portfolio may underperform due to inflation (or expectations for inflation), interest rates, global demand for particular products or resources, natural disasters, pandemics, epidemics, terrorism, regulatory events and governmental or quasi-governmental actions. The occurrence of global events similar to those in recent years, such as terrorist attacks around the world, natural disasters, social and political discord or debt crises and downgrades, among others, may result in market volatility and may have long term effects on both the U.S. and global financial markets. There is a risk that you may lose money by investing in the Fund.

Convertible Securities Risk. The value of a convertible security, which is a form of hybrid security (i.e., a security with both debt and equity characteristics), typically increases or decreases with the price of the underlying common stock. In general, a convertible security is subject to the market risks of stocks when the underlying stock's price is high relative to the conversion price and is subject to the market risks of debt securities when the underlying stock's price is low relative to the conversion price. The general market risks of debt securities that are common to convertible securities include, but are not limited to, interest rate risk and credit risk -- that is, the value of convertible securities will move in the direction opposite to movements in interest rates; they are subject to the risk that the issuer will not be able to pay interest or dividends when due; and their market value may change based on changes in the issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of the issuer's creditworthiness. Many convertible securities have credit ratings that are below investment grade and are subject to the same risks as an investment in lower-rated debt securities (commonly known as "junk bonds"). Lower-rated debt securities may fluctuate more widely in price and yield than investment grade debt securities and may fall in price during times when the economy is weak or is expected to become weak. To the extent the Fund invests in convertible securities issued by small- or mid-cap companies, it will be subject to the risks of investing in such companies.

Medium and Small Capitalization Company Risk. The Fund may invest in structured notes that use the common stock of medium and small capitalization companies as their reference assets. Compared to larger companies, medium and small capitalization companies are more likely to have (i) more limited product lines or markets and less mature businesses, (ii) fewer capital resources, (iii) more limited management depth and (iv) shorter operating histories. Further, compared to larger companies, the common stocks of small and medium capitalization companies are more likely to experience more significant changes in market values and offer greater potential for gains and losses.

**Repurchase Policy Risks.** Quarterly repurchases by the Fund of its shares typically will be funded from available cash or sales of portfolio securities. The sale of securities to fund repurchases could reduce the market price of those securities, which in turn would reduce the Fund's net asset value.

Swap Risk. The Fund's use of swaps involves risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other traditional investments. Swaps are subject to tracking risk because they may not be perfect substitutes for the instruments they are intended to track, hedge or replace. Leverage inherent in derivatives will tend to magnify the Fund's losses. Swap agreements are subject to the risk that the counterparty to the swap will default on its obligation to pay the Fund and the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its obligations to pay the counterparty to the swap. In addition, there is the risk that a swap may be terminated by the Fund or the counterparty in accordance with its terms. If a swap were to terminate, the Fund may be unable to implement its investment strategies and the Fund may not be able to seek to achieve its investment objective. The use of leveraged derivatives can magnify the Fund's potential for loss and, therefore, amplify the effects of market volatility on the Fund's share price. Derivative prices are highly volatile and may fluctuate substantially during a short period of time. Swap agreements may also involve fees, commissions or other costs that may reduce the Fund's gains from a swap agreement or may cause the Fund to lose money.

*Tax Risk.* The income and gains from certain of the Fund's investments may not allow the Fund to be treated as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Code. If the Fund fails to qualify as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Code in any fiscal year, it will be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes. As such, the Fund would be required to pay income taxes on its income at the rates generally applicable to corporations and distributions to shareholders would be treated as taxable dividends to the extent of current or accumulated earnings and profits of the Fund.

#### **U.S. Federal Income Tax Matters**

The Fund has elected to be treated and intends to qualify each year for taxation as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Code. In order for the Fund to qualify as a regulated investment company, it must meet an income and asset diversification test each year. If the Fund so qualifies and satisfies certain distribution requirements, the Fund (but not its shareholders) will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its investment company taxable income and net capital gains (the excess of net long-term capital gains over net short-term capital loss) in a timely manner to its shareholders in the form of dividends or capital gain distributions. The Code imposes a 4% nondeductible excise tax on regulated investment companies, such as the Fund, to the extent they do not meet certain distribution requirements by the end of each calendar year. The Fund anticipates meeting these distribution requirements. See "U.S. Federal Income Tax Matters."

# **Dividend Reinvestment Policy**

Unless a shareholder elects otherwise, the shareholder's distributions will be reinvested in additional shares under the Fund's dividend reinvestment policy. Shareholders who elect not to participate in the Fund's dividend reinvestment policy will receive all distributions in cash paid to the shareholder of record (or, if the shares are held in street or other nominee name, then to such nominee). See "Dividend Reinvestment Policy."

# Custodian

U.S. Bank, N.A. ("U.S. Bank") serves as the Fund's custodian. See "Management of the Fund."

# **SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES**

Shareholder Transaction Expenses	Class A	Class C	Class I
Maximum Sales Load Imposed on Purchases	4.25%	None	None
(as a percent of offering price)	4.2370	None	None
Early Withdrawal Charges on Shares Repurchased			
Less Than 365 Days After Purchase	None	1.00%	None
(as a % of the original purchase price)			
Annual Expenses			
(as a percentage of net assets attributable to shares)			
Management Fees	1.50%	1.50%	1.50%
Other Expenses	2.25%	3.00%	2.00%
Shareholder Servicing Expenses	0.25%	0.25%	0.00%
Distribution Fee (1)	0.00%	0.75%(1)	0.00%
Remaining Other Expenses	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%
Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses <sup>(2)</sup>	0.02%	0.02%	0.02%
Total Annual Expenses	3.77%	4.52%	3.52%
Fee Waiver and Reimbursement <sup>(3)</sup>	(0.75)%	(0.85)%	(0.75)%
Total Annual Expenses	2.020/	2 670/	2.770/
(after fee waiver and reimbursement)	3.02%	<u>3.67%</u>	<u>2.77%</u>

- (1) The Class C shares will pay to the Distributor a Distribution Fee that will accrue at an annual rate equal to 0.75% of the average daily net assets attributable to Class C shares and is payable on a quarterly basis. Class A and Class I shares are not currently subject to a Distribution Fee. See "Plan of Distribution."
- (2) Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses are the indirect costs of investing in other investment companies. The operating expenses in this fee table will not correlate to the expense ratio in the Fund's financial highlights, when issued, because the financial statements, when issued, include only the direct operating expenses incurred by the Fund. Acquired fund fees and expenses are estimated for the current fiscal period.
- (3) The Adviser and the Fund have entered into an expense limitation and reimbursement agreement under which the Adviser has agreed contractually to waive its fees and to pay or absorb the ordinary annual operating expenses of the Fund (excluding any front-end or contingent deferred loads, taxes, leverage interest, borrowing interest, brokerage commissions, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization, dividend expense on securities sold short, acquired (underlying) fund fees and expenses or extraordinary expenses such as litigation), to the extent that they exceed 3.00%, 3.65% and 2.75% per annum of the Fund's average daily net assets attributable to Class A, Class C and Class I shares, respectively. In consideration of the Adviser's agreement to limit the Fund's expenses, the Fund has agreed to repay the Adviser in the amount of any fees waived and Fund expenses paid or absorbed, subject to the limitations that: (1) the reimbursement for fees and expenses will be made only if payable not more than three years from when they were incurred; and (2) the reimbursement may not be made if it would cause the Expense Limitation to be exceeded. The Expense Limitation Agreement will remain in effect at least until October 31, 2024, unless and until the Board approves its modification or termination. This agreement may be terminated only by the Board on 60 days written notice to the Adviser. See "Management of the Fund."

The Summary of Expenses Table describes the fees and expenses that you may pay if you buy and hold shares of the Fund. You may qualify for sales charge discounts on purchases of shares if you and your family invest, or agree to invest in the future, at least \$25,000 in the Fund. More information about these and other discounts is available from your financial professional and in **Purchase Terms** starting on page 28 of this prospectus.

The following example illustrates the hypothetical expenses that you would pay on a \$1,000 investment assuming annual expenses attributable to shares remain unchanged and shares earn a 5% annual return:

Example	1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
You would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000 investment in Class A shares, assuming a 5% annual return	\$72	\$146	\$223	\$422
You would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000 investment in Class C shares, assuming a 5% annual return	\$37	\$129	\$222	\$458
You would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000 investment in Class I shares, assuming a 5% annual return	\$28	\$101	\$176	\$374

Shareholders who choose to participate in repurchase offers by the Fund will not incur a repurchase fee. However, if shareholders request repurchase proceeds be paid by wire transfer, such shareholders will be assessed an outgoing wire transfer fee at prevailing rates charged by UFS, currently \$15. The purpose of the above table is to help a holder of shares understand the fees and expenses that such holder would bear directly or indirectly. The example should not be considered a representation of actual future expenses. Actual expenses may be higher or lower than those shown.

# FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 has been audited by Cohen & Company, Ltd, independent registered public accounting firm to the Fund, whose report, along with the Fund's financial statements, are included in the annual report, which is available upon request. Prior years were audited by BBD, LLP.

The table below sets forth financial data for one share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout each year presented.

Class A Shares	For the Year Ended June 30,											
		2017	_	2016	_	2015		2014	_ 2	2013 <sup>(e)</sup>	2	2012 <sup>(e)</sup>
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Year	\$	8.07	\$	8.55	\$	9.98	\$	9.79	\$	10.01	\$	10.05
Increase (decrease)												
From Operations:												
Net investment income <sup>(a)</sup>		0.35		0.34		0.42		0.49		0.39		0.29
Net gain (loss) from investments												
(both realized and unrealized)		0.15	_	(0.28)		(1.27)		0.29		(0.01)		0.26
Total from operations		0.50	_	0.06		(0.85)		0.78		0.38		0.55
Less Distributions:												
From net investment income		(0.19)		(0.30)		(0.38)		(0.24)		(0.29)		(0.22)
From net realized gains												
on investments		—		_				_		(0.23)		(0.14)
From return of capital		(0.43)	_	(0.24)		(0.20)		(0.35)		(0.08)		(0.23)
Total Distributions		(0.62)	_	(0.54)	_	(0.58)	_	(0.59)		(0.60)		(0.59)
Net Asset Value, End of Year	\$	7.95	\$	8.07	\$	8.55	\$	9.98	\$	9.79	\$	10.01
Total Return(b)		6.32%		1.24%		(8.85)%		7.91%		3.92%		5.81%
Ratios/Supplemental Data												
Net assets, end of period (in 000's)	\$	22,518	\$	\$23,231	\$	25,039	\$	26,891	\$	27,581	\$	17,180
Ratio to average net assets:												
Expenses, Gross <sup>(c)</sup>		2.00%		2.12%		2.04%		1.90%		1.98%		2.28%
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement(c	)	1.75%		1.75%		1.75%		1.75%		1.75%		1.75%
Net investment income,												
Net of Reimbursement <sup>(c)(d)</sup>		4.25%		4.41%		4.44%		4.73%		3.88%		2.93%
Portfolio turnover rate		20.58%		38.08%		20.56%		20.94%		20.27%		13.76%

<sup>(</sup>a) Per share amounts are calculated using the average shares method, which more appropriately presents the per share data for the period.

<sup>(</sup>b) Total returns are historical in nature and assume changes in share price, reinvestment of dividends, returns of capital and capital gains distributions, if any. Had the Adviser not absorbed a portion of Fund expenses, total returns would have been lower.

<sup>(</sup>c) Does not include expenses of other investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>d) Recognition of investment income is affected by timing of and declaration of dividends by the underlying investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>e) Consolidated.

The table below sets forth financial data for one share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout each year presented.

Class A Shares					For	the Year I	Ende	d June 30,				
	2	023		2022	2	2021	-	2020		2019		2018
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Year Increase (decrease) From Operations:	\$_	5.10	\$_	6.45	\$	4.78	\$_	7.22	\$_	7.36	\$_	7.95
Net investment income <sup>(a)</sup>		0.51		0.23		0.11		0.19		0.23		0.26
Net gain (loss) from investments (both realized and unrealized)		(0.21)		(1.16)		1.94		(2.12)		0.21		(0.28)
Total from operations	_	0.30		(0.93)		2.05		(1.93)		0.44		(0.02)
Less Distributions:												
From net investment income		(0.51)		(0.25)		(0.02)		(0.16)		(0.31)		(0.06)
From return of capital		(0.04)	_	(0.17)		(0.36)		(0.35)		(0.27)		(0.51)
Total Distributions	_	(0.55)	_	(0.42)		(0.38)		(0.51)	_	(0.58)		(0.57)
Net Asset Value, End of Year	\$	4.85 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$_	5.10 <sup>(e)</sup>	<u>\$</u>	6.45 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$_	4.78 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$ _	7.22 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$_	7.36
Total Return(b)		5.76% <sup>(e)</sup>		(15.38)%(	e)	44.33% <sup>(e)</sup>	)	(28.16)%(	e)	6.31% <sup>(e)</sup>		(0.20)%
Ratios/Supplemental Data												
Net assets, end of year (in 000's)	\$	5,517	\$	5,662	\$	6,938	\$	6,453	\$	10,242	\$	14,164
Ratio to average net assets (including incentive fee):												
Expenses, Gross <sup>(c)(f)</sup>		6.12%		3.95%		3.22%		2.59%		2.25%		2.05%
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement(c)(f)		5.37%		3.01%		1.85%		1.82%		1.75%		1.75%
Net investment income, Net of Reimbursement <sup>(c)(d)</sup>		9.95%		3.68%		2.03%		2.98%		3.21%		3.52%
Portfolio turnover rate	1	105.29%		86.39%		0.11%		9.23%		12.06%		22.50%

<sup>(</sup>a) Per share amounts are calculated using the average shares method, which more appropriately presents the per share data for the year.

<sup>(</sup>f) Ratios to average net assets (excluding incentive fee)

Expenses, Gross	3.75%	3.38%
Expenses Net of Reimbursement	3.00%	2 44%

<sup>(</sup>b) Total returns are historical in nature and assume changes in share price, reinvestment of dividends, returns of capital and capital gains distributions, if any. Had the Advisor not absorbed a portion of Fund expenses, total returns would have been lower. Class A total return does not reflect the applicable sales load.

<sup>(</sup>c) Does not include expenses of other investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>d) Recognition of investment income is affected by timing of and declaration of dividends by the underlying investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>e) Includes adjustments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and, consequently, the net asset value for financial reporting purposes and the returns based upon those net asset values may differ from the net asset values and returns for shareholder transactions.

The table below sets forth financial data for one share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout each period presented.

Class C Shares		or the ar ended 2 30, 2017	Yea	or the ar ended 230, 2016	E	he Period Ended 30, 2015*
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Period	\$	7.96	\$	8.52	\$	9.69
Increase (decrease) From Operations:  Net investment income <sup>(a)</sup> Net loss from investments		0.28		0.28		0.11
(both realized and unrealized)		0.15		(0.30)		(1.04)
Total from operations		0.43		(0.02)		(0.93)
Less Distributions:						
From net investment income		(0.18)		(0.30)		(0.04)
From return of capital		(0.43)		(0.24)		(0.20)
Total Distributions		(0.61)		(0.54)		(0.24)
Net Asset Value, End of Period	\$	\$7.78	\$	7.96	\$	8.52
Total Return(b)		5.49%		0.25%		(9.68)% <sup>(e)</sup>
Ratios/Supplemental Data						
Net assets, end of period (in 000's)	\$	\$3,076	\$	2,341	\$	868
Ratio to average net assets:						
Expenses, Gross <sup>(d)</sup>		2.76%		2.91%		3.04% <sup>(c)</sup>
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement <sup>(d)</sup>		2.50%		2.75%		2.75% <sup>(c)</sup>
Net investment income, Net of Reimbursement <sup>(d)(f)</sup>		3.52%		3.61%		3.44% <sup>(c)</sup>
Portfolio turnover rate		20.58%		38.08%		20.56% <sup>(e)(g)</sup>

<sup>\*</sup> Class C commenced operations on January 21, 2015.

<sup>(</sup>a) Per share amounts are calculated using the average shares method, which more appropriately presents the per share data for the period.

<sup>(</sup>b) Total returns are historical in nature and assume changes in share price, reinvestment of dividends, returns of capital and capital gains distributions, if any. Had the Adviser not absorbed a portion of Fund expenses, total returns would have been lower. Total returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.

<sup>(</sup>c) Annualized for periods less than one year.

<sup>(</sup>d) Does not include expenses of other investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>e) Not annualized.

<sup>(</sup>f) Recognition of investment income is affected by timing of and declaration of dividends by the underlying investment companies in which the Fund invests.

 $<sup>\</sup>begin{tabular}{ll} (g) & Represents the Fund's portfolio turnover rate for the entire year. \end{tabular}$ 

The table below sets forth financial data for one share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout each year presented.

Class C				J	For t	he Year Er	ıded	June 30,			
	2	2023		2022		2021		2020		2019	 2018
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Year Increase (decrease) From Operations:	\$_	4.83	\$	6.15	\$	4.59	\$	6.98	\$	7.16	\$ 7.78
Net investment income <sup>(a)</sup>		0.45		0.16		0.07		0.14		0.18	0.21
Net gain (loss) from investments (both realized and unrealized)		(0.20)		(1.08)		1.86		(2.05)		0.20	(0.29)
Total from operations	_	0.25		(0.92)		1.93		(1.91)	_	0.38	(0.08)
Less Distributions: From net investment income From return of capital Total Distributions	_	(0.45) (0.04) (0.49)		(0.24) (0.16) (0.40)		(0.02) (0.35) (0.37)		(0.15) (0.33) (0.48)		(0.30) (0.26) (0.56)	 (0.05) (0.49) (0.54)
Net Asset Value, End of Year	\$_	4.59 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	4.83 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	6.15 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	4.59 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	6.98 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$ 7.16
Total Return <sup>(b)</sup>		5.13% <sup>(e)</sup>	)	(15.94)%(9	e)	43.32% <sup>(e)</sup>		(28.68)% <sup>(e)</sup>	•)	5.58% <sup>(e)</sup>	(0.89)%
Ratios/Supplemental Data  Net assets, end of year (in 000's)  Ratio to average net assets  (including inpartity fee)		1,423	\$	1,570	\$	2,902	\$	2,500	\$	3,708	\$ 3,397
(including incentive fee): Expenses, Gross <sup>(c)(f)</sup> Expenses, Not of		6.86%		4.69%		3.97%		3.35%		3.00%	2.80%
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement <sup>(c)(f)</sup> Net investment income,		6.01%		3.61%		2.50%		2.50%		2.50%	2.50%
Net of Reimbursement <sup>(c)(d)</sup> Portfolio turnover rate		9.28% 105.29%		2.57% 86.39%		1.31% 0.11%		2.33% 9.23%		2.62% 12.06%	2.91% 22.50%

<sup>(</sup>a) Per share amounts are calculated using the average shares method, which more appropriately presents the per share data for the year.

<sup>(</sup>f) Ratios to average net assets (excluding incentive fee)

Expenses, Gross	4.50 %	4.11%
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement	3.65 %	3.04%

<sup>(</sup>b) Total returns are historical in nature and assume changes in share price, reinvestment of dividends, returns of capital and capital gains distributions, if any. Had the Advisor not absorbed a portion of Fund expenses, total returns would have been lower.

<sup>(</sup>c) Does not include expenses of other investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>d) Recognition of investment income is affected by timing of and declaration of dividends by the underlying investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>e) Includes adjustments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and, consequently, the net asset value for financial reporting purposes and the returns based upon those net asset values may differ from the net asset values and returns for shareholder transactions.

The table below sets forth financial data for one share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout the period presented.

Class I		Period Ended 20, 2018(*)
Net asset value, beginning of period	\$	7.98
Increase (decrease) From Operations:		
Net investment income <sup>(a)</sup>		0.35
Net loss from investments (both realized and unrealized)		(0.49)
Total from operations		(0.14)
Less Distributions:		
From net investment income		$(0.00)^{(h)}$
From return of capital		(0.48)
Total distributions		(0.48)
Net Asset Value, End of Period	<u>\$</u>	7.36
Total Return <sup>(b)</sup>		(1.71)% <sup>(e)</sup>
Ratios/Supplemental Data		
Net assets, at end of period (in 000's)	\$	6,238
Ratio to average net assets:		
Expenses, Gross <sup>(d)</sup>		1.65% <sup>(c)</sup>
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement(d)		1.50% <sup>(c)</sup>
Net investment income, Net of Reimbursement <sup>(d)(f)</sup>		4.99% <sup>(c)</sup>
Portfolio turnover rate		22.50% <sup>(g)(c)</sup>

<sup>\*</sup> Class C commenced operations on July 17, 2017.

<sup>(</sup>a) Per share amounts are calculated using the average shares method, which more appropriately presents the per share data for the period.

<sup>(</sup>b) Total returns are historical in nature and assume changes in share price, reinvestment of dividends, returns of capital and capital gains distributions, if any. Had the Adviser not absorbed a portion of Fund expenses, total returns would have been lower.

<sup>(</sup>c) Annualized

<sup>(</sup>d) Does not include expenses of other investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>e) Not annualized.

<sup>(</sup>f) Recognition of investment income is affected by timing of and declaration of dividends by the underlying investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>g) Represents the Fund's portfolio turnover rate for the entire year.

<sup>(</sup>h) Less than \$0.01 per share.

The table below sets forth financial data for one share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout each year presented.

Class I	Year Ended June 30, 2023		ar Ended une 30, 2022	Ju	r Ended ne 30, 2021	Jı	r Ended ine 30, 2020	Ju	r Ended ine 30, 2019
Net Asset Value, Beginning of Year Increase (decrease)	\$ 5.15	\$	6.50	\$	4.81	\$	7.25	\$	7.36
From Operations: Net investment income <sup>(a)</sup> Net gain (loss)	0.53		0.31		0.12		0.20		0.26
from investments (both realized and unrealized)	(0.21)		(1.24)		1.95		(2.13)		0.21
Total from operations	0.32		(0.93)		2.07		(1.93)		0.47
Less Distributions: From net investment income From return of capital Total Distributions	(0.53) (0.04) (0.57)		(0.25) (0.17) (0.42)		(0.02) (0.36) (0.38)		(0.16) (0.35) (0.51)		(0.31) (0.27) (0.58)
Net Asset Value, End of Year	\$ 4.90 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	5.15 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	6.50 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	4.81 <sup>(e)</sup>	\$	7.25 <sup>(e)</sup>
Total Return <sup>(b)</sup>	6.04% <sup>(e)</sup>	)	(15.22)% <sup>(e)</sup>	)	44.53% <sup>(e)</sup>		(28.02)%	(e)	6.68% <sup>(e)</sup>
Ratios/Supplemental Data  Net assets, end of Year (in 000's)  Ratio to average net assets	\$ 10,206	\$	10,419	\$	5,884	\$	4,841	\$	6,893
(including incentive fee): Expenses, Gross <sup>(c)(f)</sup>	5.88%		3.73%		2.97%		2.36%		2.00%
Expenses,  Net of Reimbursement <sup>(c)(f)</sup>	5.13%		2.95%		1.60%		1.57%		1.50%
Net investment income, Net of Reimbursement <sup>(c)(d)</sup>	10.20%		4.85%		2.16%		3.26%		3.55%
Portfolio turnover rate	105.29%		86.39%		0.11%		9.23%		12.06%

<sup>(</sup>a) Per share amounts are calculated using the average shares method, which more appropriately presents the per share data for the year.

<sup>(</sup>f) Ratios to average net assets (excluding incentive fee)

Expenses, Gross	3.50%	3.16%
Expenses, Net of Reimbursement	2.75%	2.38%

<sup>(</sup>b) Total returns are historical in nature and assume changes in share price, reinvestment of dividends, returns of capital and capital gains distributions, if any. Had the Advisor not absorbed a portion of Fund expenses, total returns would have been lower.

<sup>(</sup>c) Does not include expenses of other investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>d) Recognition of investment income is affected by timing of and declaration of dividends by the underlying investment companies in which the Fund invests.

<sup>(</sup>e) Includes adjustments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and, consequently, the net asset value for financial reporting purposes and the returns based upon those net asset values may differ from the net asset values and returns for shareholder transactions.

# THE FUND

The Fund is a continuously offered, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that is operated as an interval fund. The Fund was organized as a Delaware statutory trust on June 15, 2010. The Fund's principal office is located at c/o Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC, 225 Pictoria Drive, Suite 450, Cincinnati, OH 45246 and its telephone number is 1-833-860-1407.

# **USE OF PROCEEDS**

The net proceeds of the continuous offering of shares, after payment of the sales load, will be invested in accordance with the Fund's investment objective and policies (as stated below) as soon as practicable after receipt. The Fund will pay its offering expenses incurred with respect to its continuous offering. Pending investment of the net proceeds in accordance with the Fund's investment objective and policies, the Fund will invest in money market or short-term fixed-income mutual funds.

# INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE, POLICIES AND STRATEGIES

# **Investment Objective and Policies**

The Fund's investment objective is to seek attractive risk-adjusted returns with low to moderate volatility and low correlation to the broader markets, through a concentrated alternative investment approach with an emphasis on income generation.

Under normal market conditions, the Fund will seek to provide attractive risk adjusted returns by taking advantage of volatility in the equity markets. The Fund's adviser seeks to construct a diversified portfolio of structured notes in which the individual portfolio investments do not exhibit significant correlation to each other and do not draw down losses simultaneously. The adviser's strategy centers around creating optionality by laddering short-term structured notes (that is, purchasing notes with different maturity dates) which can generate attractive coupon yields when the underlying reference asset trades within a predetermined price range.

The Fund may employ leverage, including borrowing from banks in an amount of up to 33% of the Fund's assets (defined as net assets plus borrowing for investment purposes). The Fund is authorized to borrow money in connection with its investment activities, subject to the limits of the asset coverage requirement of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"). The Fund also may borrow money to satisfy repurchase requests from Fund shareholders and to otherwise provide the Fund with temporary liquidity. The 1940 Act requires a registered investment company to satisfy an asset coverage requirement of 300% of its indebtedness, including amounts borrowed, measured at the time indebtedness occurs. This means that the value of the Fund's total indebtedness may not exceed one-third of the value of its total assets, including the value of the assets purchased with the proceeds of its indebtedness.

The Statement of Additional Information contains a list of the fundamental (those that may not be changed without a shareholder vote) and non-fundamental (if any) investment policies of the Fund under the heading "Investment Objective and Policies."

# **Investment Strategy and Criteria Used in Selecting Investments**

Under normal market conditions, the Fund will seek to provide attractive risk adjusted returns by taking advantage of volatility in the equity markets. The Adviser seeks to construct a diversified portfolio of structured notes in which the individual portfolio investments do not exhibit significant correlation to each other and do not draw down losses simultaneously. The Adviser's strategy centers around creating optionality by laddering short-term structured notes (that is, purchasing notes with different maturity dates) which can generate attractive coupon yields when the underlying reference asset trades within a predetermined price range. Each investment seeks to generate income while providing a cushion before loss of principal can occur (as discussed below).

An example of an investment that the Fund expects to invest in is a structured note linked to the performance of an individual common stock. The Fund will invest primarily in such structured notes. To illustrate, the Fund may purchase a structured note issued by a third-party issuer with a twelve-month maturity, quarterly observation dates and a 50% barrier, which references the performance of a common stock. Each quarter on the specified observation date, the coupon (that is, interest) will be paid to the Fund by the issuer if the reference common stock trades within the predetermined price range (i.e., above the 50% barrier in this instance and below a specified upper limit). If, on a particular observation date, the price of the reference common stock breaches the upper limit, the note will be called by the issuer, and the coupon and principal paid to the Fund by the issuer. If, on a particular observation date (not the maturity date), the reference common stock trades below the barrier, no coupon will be paid in that period and the note will remain outstanding.

At maturity, if the closing price of the reference common stock is above the barrier, the full amount of principal and coupon will be paid to the Fund by the issuer, and in most instances previously missed coupons will be paid as well. Conversely, if at maturity, the price of the reference common stock trades below the barrier, it will result in a loss of the amount of principal paid to the Fund by the issuer in an amount proportionate to the decline in the price of the reference common stock. To help to minimize overall downside risk for the Fund's portfolio, the Fund seeks to invest in 20-40 short-term structured notes that are diversified across industry, company, observation dates, maturity dates, barrier levels and issuers. The number of structured notes held by the Fund at any one time may vary and may be less than 20 or more than 40 from time to time.

The Fund will primarily purchase structured notes from counterparty issuers that are rated investment grade or better (or issuers that are fully guaranteed by an investment grade rated parent company). At the time of investment, The Fund will not have (i) more than 10% of its assets in structured notes issued by counterparty issuers that are unrated or rated below investment grade; and (ii) more than 5% of the Fund's assets invested in any single counterparty issuer that is unrated or rated below investment grade.

The Adviser will invest in structured notes that have individual domestic and foreign equity securities, baskets of several equity securities, market indices and commodities as their reference assets. The Adviser may enter in swap agreements that have similar investment characteristics to the structured notes in which the Fund directly invests.

While it is anticipated that many of the structured notes held by the Fund will be designed to perform well when the reference common stock increases in price (i.e. positive correlation), other structured notes may seek negative correlation by being designed to perform well when the underlying reference common stock declines in value.

In seeking to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns and to mitigate downside risk, the adviser:

- 1. Diversifies the underlying reference equity assets
- 2. Constructs a portfolio with varied maturity dates for each structured note
- 3. Adjusts the Fund's use of positively and negatively correlated structured notes; and
- 4. Uses multiple counterparties (or issuers) that are deemed credit-worthy by the Adviser

# Other Information Regarding Investment Strategy

The Fund may, from time to time, take defensive positions that are inconsistent with the Fund's principal investment strategy in attempting to respond to adverse market, economic, political or other conditions. During such times, the Adviser may determine that the Fund should invest up to 100% of its assets in cash or cash equivalents, including money market instruments, prime commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Treasury bills and other short-term obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities. In these and in other cases, the Fund may not achieve its investment objective. The Adviser may invest the Fund's cash balances in any investments it deems appropriate. The Adviser expects that such investments will be made, without limitation and as permitted under the 1940 Act, in money market funds, repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency securities, municipal bonds and bank accounts. Any income earned from such investments is ordinarily reinvested by the Fund in accordance with its investment program. Many of the considerations entering into recommendations and decisions of the Adviser and the Fund's portfolio manager are subjective.

The Fund has no current intent to sell securities short. The Fund does not intend to use leverage through issuing preferred shares. However, the Board may decide to issue preferred shares in the future, subject to the asset coverage requirements of the 1940 Act. The Fund may borrow for investment purposes, for temporary liquidity, or to finance repurchases of its shares, as permitted under the 1940 Act. In addition, the Fund may be deemed to incur economic leverage embedded in instruments in which it may invest.

The frequency and amount of portfolio purchases and sales (known as the "portfolio turnover rate") will vary from year to year. The portfolio turnover rate is not expected to exceed 100%, but may vary greatly from year to year and will not be a limiting factor when the Adviser deems portfolio changes appropriate. The portfolio turnover rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 was approximately 105.29%. Although the Fund generally does not intend to trade for short-term profits, the Fund may engage in short-term trading strategies, and securities may be sold without regard to the length of time held when, in the opinion of the Adviser, investment considerations warrant such action. These policies may have the effect of increasing the annual rate of portfolio turnover of the Fund. Higher rates of portfolio turnover would likely result in higher brokerage commissions and may generate short-term capital gains taxable as ordinary income. If securities are not held for the applicable holding periods, dividends paid on them will not qualify for the advantageous federal tax rates. See "Tax Status" in the Fund's Statement of Additional Information.

There is no assurance what portion, if any, of the Fund's investments will qualify for the reduced federal income tax rates applicable to qualified dividends under the Code. As a result, there can be no assurance as to what portion of the Fund's distributions will be designated as qualified dividend income. See "U.S. Federal Income Tax Matters."

#### **Portfolio Investments**

The Fund may invest in the following types of securities, subject to certain limitations as set forth below. The Fund is under no obligation to invest in any of these securities.

#### Structured Notes

The Fund invests primarily in structured notes. These instruments are notes where the principal and/or interest rate or value of the structured note is determined by reference to the performance of an underlying reference asset. Underlying reference assets may include a security or other financial instrument though the Fund primarily invests in structured notes that reference the performance of a particular underlying equity security. The Fund may also invest in structured notes that reference the performance of a basket of equity securities, a market index or a commodity. The interest and/or principal payments that may be made on a structured note may vary widely, depending on a variety of factors, including the volatility of the underlying reference asset. The performance results of structured notes will not replicate exactly the performance of the underlying reference asset that the notes seek to replicate due to transaction costs and other expenses. Issuers of structured notes can vary and may include corporations, banks, broker-dealers and limited purpose trusts or other vehicles. Structured notes may be exchange traded OTC and privately negotiated.

Investments in structured notes involve many of the same risks associated with a direct investment in the underlying reference asset the notes seek to replicate. Structured notes may be considered hybrid instruments as they may exhibit features of both fixed income securities and derivatives. The return on a structured note that is linked to a particular underlying reference asset that pays dividends generally is increased to the extent of any dividends paid in connection with the underlying reference asset. However, the holder of a structured note typically does not receive voting rights and other rights as it would if it directly owned the underlying reference asset. In addition, structured notes are subject to counterparty risk, which is the risk that the issuer of the structured note will not fulfill its contractual obligation to complete the transaction with a Fund. Structured notes constitute general unsecured contractual obligations of the issuer of the note and the Fund is relying on the creditworthiness of such issuer and has no rights under a structured note against the issuer of an underlying reference asset. Structured notes involve transaction costs. Structured notes may be considered illiquid.

# Swap Agreements

Swap agreements are two-party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than one year. In a standard "swap" transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of returns) earned or realized on particular predetermined investments or instruments. The gross returns to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties are calculated with respect to a "notional amount," i.e., the return on or increase in value of a particular dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate, in a particular foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index. The "notional amount" of the swap agreement is only a fictive basis on which to calculate the obligations the parties to a swap agreement have agreed to exchange. The Fund's obligations (or rights) under a swap agreement will generally be equal only to the amount to be paid or received under the agreement based on the relative values of the positions held by each party to the agreement (the "net amount"). The Fund's obligations under a swap agreement will be accrued daily (offset against any amounts owing to the Fund) and any accrued but unpaid net amounts owed to a swap counterparty will be covered by the maintenance of a segregated account consisting of cash, U.S. government securities, or other liquid securities, to avoid leveraging of the Fund's portfolio.

# Convertible Securities

Convertible securities are bonds, debentures, notes, preferred stocks and other securities that pay interest or dividends and are convertible into or exchangeable for common stocks. Convertible securities generally have some features of common stocks and some features of debt securities. In general, a convertible security performs more like a stock when the underlying stock's price is high relative to the conversion price (because it is assumed that it will be converted into the stock) and performs more like a debt security when the underlying stock's price is low relative to the conversion price (because it is assumed that it will mature without being converted). Convertible securities typically pay an income yield that is higher than the dividend yield of the issuer's common stock, but lower than the yield of the issuer's debt securities.

# **RISK FACTORS**

An investment in the Fund's shares is subject to risks. The value of the Fund's investments will increase or decrease based on changes in the prices of the investments it holds. This will cause the value of the Fund's shares to increase or decrease. You could lose money by investing in the Fund. By itself, the Fund does not constitute a complete investment program. Before investing in the Fund, you should carefully consider the following risks the Fund faces through its investments. There may be additional risks that the Fund does not currently foresee or consider material. You may wish to consult with your legal or tax advisors, before deciding whether to invest in the Fund.

Structured Note Risk. The Fund will primarily invest in structured notes. The structured notes may include investments in structured products, securitizations and other asset-backed securities. Among other risks, the notes (i) are subject to the risks associated with the underlying assets; (ii) will often be leveraged, which will generally magnify the opportunities for gain and risk of loss; (iii) are highly complex, which may cause disputes as to their terms and impact the valuation and liquidity of such positions; and (iv) often contain significant obstacles to asserting "putback" or similar claims against the notes.

Risk of Loss at Maturity. The Notes differ from ordinary debt securities in that the issuer will not necessarily pay the full principal amount of the notes at maturity. If the notes are not called, the issuer will repay the Fund the principal amount of the notes in cash only if the final price of the underlying asset is equal to or greater than the trigger price and will only make such payment at maturity. If the notes are not called and the final price is less than the trigger price, the Fund will be exposed to the negative underlying return and lose a significant portion or all of its initial investment in an amount proportionate to the decline in the price of the underlying asset.

Contingent Repayment of the Fund's Principal Applies Only at Maturity. The Fund expects to hold the notes to maturity. If the Fund is able to sell its notes prior to maturity in the secondary market, it may have to sell them at a loss relative to its initial investment even if the then-current underlying asset price is equal to or greater than the trigger price at that time.

The Fund May Not Receive Any Contingent Coupons. The issuer will not necessarily pay periodic contingent coupons on the notes. If the closing price of the underlying asset on an observation date is less than the coupon barrier, the issuer will not pay the Fund the contingent coupon applicable to such observation date. If the closing price of the underlying asset is less than the coupon barrier on each of the observation dates, the issuer will not pay the Fund any contingent coupons during the term of, and you will not receive a positive return on, the notes. Generally, this non-payment of the contingent coupon coincides with a period of greater risk of principal loss on the notes.

The Fund's Potential Return on the Notes is Limited and It Will Not Participate in any Appreciation of the Underlying Asset. The return potential of the notes is limited to the contingent coupon rate, regardless of the appreciation of the underlying asset. In addition, the total return on the notes will vary based on the number of observation dates on which the requirements of the contingent coupon have been met prior to maturity or an automatic call. Further, if the notes are called due to the automatic call feature, you will not receive any contingent coupons or any other payment in respect of any observation dates after the applicable call settlement date. Since the notes could be called as early as the first observation date, the total return on the Notes could be minimal. If the notes are not called, you will not participate in any appreciation in the price of the underlying asset even though you will be subject to the underlying asset's risk of decline. As a result, the return on an investment in the notes could be less than the return on a direct investment in the underlying asset.

Higher Contingent Coupon Rates are Generally Associated with a Greater Risk of Loss. Greater expected volatility with respect to the underlying asset reflects a higher expectation as of the trade date that the price of such underlying asset could close below its trigger price on the final valuation date of the notes. This greater expected risk will generally be reflected in a higher contingent coupon rate for that note. However, an underlying asset's volatility can change significantly over the term of the notes and the price of the underlying asset for your notes could fall sharply, which could result in a significant loss of principal.

Reinvestment Risk. The notes will be called automatically if the closing price of the underlying asset is equal to or greater than the initial price on any observation date. In the event that the notes are called prior to maturity, there is no guarantee that you will be able to reinvest the proceeds from an investment in the notes at a comparable rate of return for a similar level of risk. To the extent you are able to reinvest such proceeds in an investment comparable to the notes, you will incur transaction costs and the original issue price for such an investment is likely to include certain built-in costs such as dealer discounts and hedging costs.

Greater Expected Volatility Generally Indicates an Increased Risk of Loss at Maturity. "Volatility" refers to the frequency and magnitude of changes in the price of the underlying asset. The greater the expected volatility of the underlying asset as of the trade date, the greater the expectation is as of the trade date that the closing price of the underlying asset could be less than the coupon barrier on any observation date and that the final price of the underlying asset could be less than the trigger price on the final valuation date and, as a consequence, indicates an increased risk of loss. However, the underlying asset's volatility can change significantly over the term of the notes, and a relatively lower coupon barrier and/or trigger price may not necessarily indicate that the notes have a greater likelihood of a return of principal at maturity. You should be willing to accept the downside market risk of the underlying asset and the potential to lose a significant portion or all of your initial investment.

General Credit Risk. The Fund is subject to significant credit risk (i.e., the risk that an issuer or borrower will default in the payment of principal and/or interest on an instrument) in light of its investment strategy. Credit risk also includes the risk that a counterparty to a derivatives transaction (e.g., a swap counterparty or futures commission merchant) will be unwilling or unable to meet its obligations. Financial strength and solvency of an issuer or borrower are the primary factors influencing credit risk. In addition, degree of subordination, lack or inadequacy of collateral or credit enhancement for a debt instrument may affect its credit risk. Investments in stressed or distressed companies inherently have more credit risk than do similar investments in other companies. The degree of credit risk associated with any particular Portfolio Investment or any collateral relating thereto may be difficult or impossible for the Adviser to determine within reasonable standards of predictability. The Adviser also expects to utilize various third parties that hold Fund assets (such as the prime broker) in implementing the Fund's investment strategy, and the Fund will therefore also be subject to credit risk with respect to such entities.

Credit Risk of the Issuer. The notes are unsubordinated, unsecured debt obligations of the issuer, and are not, either directly or indirectly, an obligation of any third party. Any payment to be made on the notes, including any repayment of principal, depends on the ability of the issuer to satisfy its obligations as they come due. As a result, the actual and perceived creditworthiness of the issuer may affect the market value of the notes and, in the event the issuer were to default on its obligations, you may not receive any amounts owed to you under the terms of the notes and you could lose your entire investment.

Common Stock Risk. The value of the Fund will fluctuate based on changes in the value of the equity securities which are used as underlying reference assets for the structured notes held by the Fund. Common stock prices can fall rapidly in response to developments affecting a specific company or industry, or to changing economic, political or market conditions. Stock prices in general may decline over short or even extended periods of time. Market prices of equity securities in broad market segments may be adversely affected by a prominent issuer having experienced losses or by the lack of earnings or such an issuer's failure to meet the market's expectations with respect to new products or services, or even by factors wholly unrelated to the value or condition of the issuer, such as changes in interest rates. The risks that are associated with investing in common stock include the financial risk of purchasing individual companies that perform poorly, the risk that the stock markets in which the common stock purchased by the Fund trade may experience periods of turbulence and instability, and the general risk that domestic and foreign economies may go through periods of decline and cycles of change. Many factors affect an individual company's performance, such as the strength of its management or the demand for its services or products. You should be aware that the value of a company's share price may decline as a result of poor decisions made by management or lower demand for the company's services or products. In addition, a company's share price may also decline if its earnings or revenues fall short of expectations. There are also risks associated with the stock market overall. Over time, stock markets tend to move in cycles, with periods when stock prices rise generally and periods when stock prices decline generally. The value of the Fund's investments may increase or decrease more than the stock market in general.

**Fixed Income Risk.** When the Fund invests in fixed income securities, the value of your investment in the Fund will fluctuate with changes in interest rates. Typically, a rise in interest rates causes a decline in the value of fixed income securities. In general, the market price of debt securities with longer maturities will increase or decrease more in response to changes in interest rates than shorter-term securities. Other risk factors include credit risk (the debtor may default) and prepayment risk (the debtor may pay its obligation early, reducing the amount of interest payments). These risks could affect the value of a particular investment, possibly causing the Fund's share price and total return to be reduced and fluctuate more than other types of investments.

Junk Bond Risk. Lower-quality fixed income securities, known as "high yield" or "junk" bonds, present a significant risk for loss of principal and interest. These bonds offer the potential for higher return, but also involve greater risk than bonds of higher quality, including an increased possibility that the bond's issuer, obligor or guarantor may not be able to make its payments of interest and principal (credit quality risk). If that happens, the value of the bond may decrease, and the Fund's share price may decrease and its income distribution may be reduced. An economic downturn or period of rising interest rates (interest rate risk) could adversely affect the market for these bonds and reduce the Fund's ability to sell its bonds (liquidity risk). Such securities may also include "Rule 144A" securities, which are subject to resale restrictions. The lack of a liquid market for these bonds could decrease the Fund's share price.

Foreign Risk. Investments in structured notes that have foreign equity securities as reference assets could subject the Fund to greater risks because the Fund's performance may depend on issues other than the performance of a particular company or U.S. market sector. Changes in foreign economies and political climates are more likely to affect the Fund than a mutual fund that invests exclusively in U.S. securities. The values of foreign securities are also affected by the value of the local currency relative to the U.S. dollar. There may also be less government supervision of foreign markets, resulting in non-uniform accounting practices and less publicly available information. The values of foreign investments may be affected by changes in exchange control regulations, application of foreign tax laws (including withholding tax), changes in governmental administration or economic or monetary policy (in this country or abroad) or changed circumstances in dealings between nations. In addition, foreign brokerage commissions, custody fees and other costs of investing in foreign securities are generally higher than in the United States. Investments in foreign issues could be affected by other factors not present in the United States, including expropriation, armed conflict, confiscatory taxation, and potential difficulties in enforcing contractual obligations and foreign securities may be more illiquid that domestic securities.

Commodities Risk. The Fund may invest in structured notes that have commodities as their reference asset. Investment exposure to the commodities markets may subject the Fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. Commodity prices may be influenced by unfavorable weather, animal and plant disease, geologic and environmental factors as well as changes in government regulation such as tariffs, embargoes or burdensome production rules and restrictions.

**Issuer Risk.** The value of a specific security can be more volatile than the market as a whole and can perform differently from the value of the market as a whole. As a non-diversified fund, the Fund may invest more than 5% of its total assets in the securities of one or more issuers. The Fund's performance may be more sensitive to any single economic, business, political or regulatory occurrence than the value of shares of a diversified investment company. The value of an issuer's securities that are held in the Fund's portfolio may decline for a number of reasons which directly relate to the issuer, such as management performance, financial leverage and reduced demand for the issuer's goods and services.

Leveraging Risk. The use of leverage, such as borrowing money to purchase securities, by the Fund will magnify the Fund's gains or losses. Generally, the use of leverage also will cause the Fund to have higher expenses (especially interest and/or short selling-related dividend expenses) than those of funds that do not use such techniques. In addition, a lender to the Fund may terminate or refuse to renew any credit facility. If the Fund is unable to access additional credit, it may be forced to sell investments at inopportune times, which may further depress the returns of the Fund.

Liquidity Risk. The Fund is a closed-end investment company structured as an "interval fund" and designed for long-term investors. Unlike many closed-end investment companies, the Fund's shares are not listed on any securities exchange and are not publicly traded. There is currently no secondary market for the shares and the Fund expects that no secondary market will develop. Limited liquidity is provided to shareholders only through the Fund's quarterly repurchase offers for no less than 5% of the shares outstanding at net asset value. There is no guarantee that shareholders will be able to sell all of the shares they desire in a quarterly repurchase offer. The Fund's investments are also subject to liquidity risk. Liquidity risk exists when particular investments of the Fund would be difficult to purchase or sell, possibly preventing the Fund from selling such illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price, or possibly requiring the Fund to dispose of other investments at unfavorable times or prices in order to satisfy its obligations. Funds with principal investment strategies that involve securities of companies with smaller market capitalizations, derivatives or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk.

*Management Risk.* The Adviser's judgments about the attractiveness, value and potential appreciation of particular asset classes and securities in which the Fund invests (directly or indirectly) may prove to be incorrect and may not produce the desired results.

*New Adviser Risk.* The Adviser is a newly formed entity, and it has not previously managed a closed-end fund. As a result, investors do not have a long-term track record from which to judge the Adviser and the Adviser may not achieve the intended result in managing the Fund. Closed-end funds and their advisers are subject to restrictions and limitations imposed by the 1940 Act and the Internal Revenue Code.

*Market Risk.* The Fund may be materially affected by market, economic and political conditions globally and in the jurisdictions and sectors in which it invests or operates, including factors affecting interest rates, the availability of credit, currency exchange rates and trade barriers. These factors are outside the Adviser's control and could adversely affect the liquidity and value of the Fund's investments, and may reduce the ability of the Fund to make attractive new investments.

In particular, economic and financial market conditions began to significantly deteriorate around 2007 as compared to prior periods. Global financial markets experienced considerable declines in the valuations of debt and equity securities, an acute contraction in the availability of credit and the failure of a number of leading financial institutions. As a result, certain government bodies and central banks worldwide, including the U.S. Treasury Department and the U.S. Federal Reserve, undertook unprecedented intervention programs, the effects of which remain uncertain. The U.S. economy has experienced and continues to experience relatively high levels of unemployment and constrained lending. Although certain financial markets have shown some recent signs of the improvement, to the extent economic conditions experienced over the last five years continue, they may adversely impact the investments of the Fund. Low interest rates related to monetary stimulus and economic stagnation may also negatively impact expected returns on investments in such an environment. Trends and historical events do not imply, forecast or predict future events and past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that the assumptions made or the beliefs and expectations currently held by the Adviser will prove correct, and actual events and circumstances may vary significantly.

The Fund may be subject to risk arising from a default by one of several large institutions that are dependent on one another to meet their liquidity or operational needs, so that a default by one institution may cause a series of defaults by the other institutions. This is sometimes referred to as "systemic risk" and may adversely affect financial intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, clearing houses, banks, securities firms and exchanges, with which the Fund interacts on a daily basis.

In addition, the current novel coronavirus (COVID-19) global pandemic and the aggressive responses taken by many governments, including closing borders, restricting international and domestic travel, and the imposition of prolonged quarantines or similar restrictions, as well as the forced or voluntary closure of, or operational changes to, many retail and other businesses, has had negative impacts, and in many cases severe negative impacts, on markets worldwide. It is not known how long such impacts, or any future impacts of other significant events described above, will or would last, but there could be a prolonged period of global economic slowdown, which may impact your investment. Therefore, the Fund could lose money over short periods due to short-term market movements and over longer periods during more prolonged market downturns.

Convertible Securities Risk. The value of a convertible security, which is a form of hybrid security (i.e., a security with both debt and equity characteristics), typically increases or decreases with the price of the underlying common stock. In general, a convertible security is subject to the market risks of stocks, and its price may be as volatile as that of the underlying stock, when the underlying stock's price is high relative to the conversion price, and a convertible security is subject to the market risks of debt securities, and is particularly sensitive to changes in interest rates, when the underlying stock's price is low relative to the conversion price. The general market risks of debt securities that are common to convertible securities include, but are not limited to, interest rate risk and credit risk — that is, the value of convertible securities will move in the direction opposite to movements in interest rates; they are subject to the risk that the issuer will not be able to pay interest or dividends when due; and their market value may change based on changes in the issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of the issuer's creditworthiness. Because their value can be influenced by many different factors, convertible securities generally have less potential for gain or loss than the underlying common stocks. Securities that are convertible other than at the option of the holder generally do not limit the potential for loss to the same extent as securities that are convertible only at the option of the holder.

Many convertible securities have credit ratings that are below investment grade and are subject to the same risks as an investment in lower-rated debt securities (commonly known as "junk bonds"). Lower-rated debt securities may fluctuate more widely in price and yield than investment grade debt securities and may fall in price during times when the economy is weak or is expected to become weak. The credit rating of a company's convertible securities is generally lower than that of its non-convertible debt securities. Convertible securities are normally considered "junior" securities—that is, the company usually must pay interest on its non-convertible debt securities before it can make payments on its convertible securities. If the issuer stops paying interest or principal, convertible securities may become worthless and the Fund could lose its entire investment. To the extent the Fund invests in convertible securities issued by small- or mid-cap companies, it will be subject to the risks of investing in such companies.

Medium and Small Capitalization Company Risk. Medium or small capitalization companies may be newly formed or have limited product lines, distribution channels and financial and managerial resources. The risks associated with these investments are generally greater than those associated with investments in the securities of larger, more-established companies. This may cause the Fund's net asset value to be more volatile when compared to investment companies that focus only on large capitalization companies. Generally, securities of medium and small capitalization companies are more likely to experience sharper swings in market values, less liquid markets, in which it may be more difficult for the Adviser to sell at times and at prices that the Adviser believes appropriate and generally are more volatile than those of larger companies. Compared to large companies, smaller companies are more likely to have (i) less information publicly available, (ii) more limited product lines or markets and less mature businesses, (iii) fewer capital resources, (iv) more limited management depth and (v) shorter operating histories.

Repurchase Policy Risks. Quarterly repurchases by the Fund of its shares typically will be funded from available cash or sales of portfolio securities. However, payment for repurchased shares may require the Fund to liquidate portfolio holdings earlier than the Adviser otherwise would liquidate such holdings, potentially resulting in losses, and may increase the Fund's portfolio turnover. The Adviser may take measures to attempt to avoid or minimize such potential losses and turnover, and instead of liquidating portfolio holdings, may borrow money to finance repurchases of shares. If the Fund borrows to finance repurchases, interest on any such borrowing will negatively affect shareholders who do not tender their shares in a repurchase offer by increasing the Fund's expenses and reducing any net investment income. To the extent the Fund finances repurchase proceeds by selling investments, the Fund may hold a larger proportion of its net assets in less liquid securities. Also, the sale of securities to fund repurchases could reduce the market price of those securities, which in turn would reduce the Fund's net asset value.

Repurchase of shares will tend to reduce the amount of outstanding shares and, depending upon the Fund's investment performance, its net assets. A reduction in the Fund's net assets may increase the Fund's expense ratio, to the extent that additional shares are not sold. In addition, the repurchase of shares by the Fund may be a taxable event to shareholders.

Swap Risk. The Fund's use of swaps involves risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other traditional investments. Swaps are subject to tracking risk because they may not be perfect substitutes for the instruments they are intended to track, hedge or replace. Leverage inherent in derivatives will tend to magnify the Fund's losses. Swap agreements are subject to the risk that the counterparty to the swap will default on its obligation to pay the Fund and the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its obligations to pay the counterparty to the swap. In addition, there is the risk that a swap may be terminated by the Fund or the counterparty in accordance with its terms. If a swap were to terminate, the Fund may be unable to implement its investment strategies and the Fund may not be able to seek to achieve its investment objective. The use of leveraged derivatives can magnify the Fund's potential for loss and, therefore, amplify the effects of market volatility on the Fund's share price. Derivative prices are highly volatile and may fluctuate substantially during a short period of time. Swap agreements may also involve fees, commissions or other costs that may reduce the Fund's gains from a swap agreement or may cause the Fund to lose money.

*Tax Risk.* The income and gains from certain of the Fund's investments may not allow the Fund to be treated as a regulated investment company under the Internal Revenue Code. If the Fund fails to qualify as a regulated investment company under the Internal Revenue Code in any fiscal year, it will be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes. As such, the Fund would be required to pay income taxes on its income at the rates generally applicable to corporations and distributions to shareholders would be treated as taxable dividends to the extent of current or accumulated earnings and profits of the Fund.

*Cybersecurity.* The computer systems, networks and devices used by the Fund and its service providers to carry out routine business operations employ a variety of protections designed to prevent damage or interruption from computer viruses, network failures, computer and telecommunication failures, infiltration by unauthorized persons and security breaches. Despite the various protections utilized by the Fund and its service providers, systems, networks, or devices potentially can be breached. The Fund and its shareholders could be negatively impacted as a result of a cybersecurity breach.

Cybersecurity breaches can include unauthorized access to systems, networks, or devices; infection from computer viruses or other malicious software code; and attacks that shut down, disable, slow, or otherwise disrupt operations, business processes, or website access or functionality. Cybersecurity breaches may cause disruptions and impact the Fund's business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses; interference with the Fund's ability to calculate their NAV; impediments to trading; the inability of the Fund, the Adviser, and other service providers to transact business; violations of applicable privacy and other laws; regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, or additional compliance costs; as well as the inadvertent release of confidential information.

# MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

# **Trustees and Officers**

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Fund, including oversight of the duties performed by the Adviser. The Board is comprised of four Trustees. The Trustees are responsible for the Fund's overall management, including adopting the investment and other policies of the Fund, electing and replacing officers and selecting and overseeing the Fund's Adviser. The name and business address of the Trustees and officers of the Fund and their principal occupations and other affiliations during the past five years, as well as a description of committees of the Board, are set forth under "Management of the Fund" in the Statement of Additional Information.

# **Investment Adviser**

SCG Asset Management, LLC., located at 2132 Deep Water Lane, Suite 240A, Naperville, IL 60564, serves as the Fund's investment adviser. The Adviser is registered with the SEC as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. The Adviser is a New York limited liability company formed in 2021 for the purpose of advising individuals and institutions.

Under the oversight of the Board, the Adviser will carry out the investment and reinvestment of the net assets of the Fund, will furnish continuously an investment program with respect to the Fund, determine which securities should be purchased, sold or exchanged. In addition, the Adviser will supervise and provide oversight of the Fund's service providers. The Adviser will furnish to the Fund office facilities, equipment and personnel for servicing the management of the Fund. The Adviser will compensate all Adviser personnel who provide services to the Fund. In return for these services, facilities and payments, the Fund has agreed to pay the Adviser a management fee calculated and payable monthly in arrears at the annual rate of 1.50% of the Fund's average daily net assets during such period.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's approval of the Fund's Investment Management Agreement is available in the Fund's Semi-Annual Report to shareholders for the fiscal period ending December 31, 2021.

The Adviser and the Fund have entered into an expense limitation and reimbursement agreement under which the Adviser has agreed contractually to waive its fees and to pay or absorb the ordinary operating expenses of the Fund (excluding front-end or contingent deferred loads, taxes, leverage interest, borrowing interest, brokerage commissions, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization, dividend expense on securities sold short, acquired (underlying) fund fees and expenses or extraordinary expenses such as litigation), to the extent that they exceed 3.00%, 3.65% and 2.75% per annum of the Fund's average daily net assets attributable to Class A, Class C and Class I shares, respectively. In consideration of the Adviser's agreement to limit the Fund's expenses, the Fund has agreed to repay the Adviser in the amount of any fees waived and Fund expenses paid or absorbed, subject to the limitations that: (1) the reimbursement will be made only for fees and expenses incurred not more than three years from when they were incurred; and (2) the reimbursement may not be made if it would cause the Expense Limitation to be exceeded. The Expense Limitation Agreement will remain in effect, at least until October 31, 2024, unless and until the Board approves its modification or termination. This agreement may be terminated only by the Board on 60 days written notice to the Adviser. After October 31, 2024, the Expense Limitation Agreement may be renewed at the Adviser's and Board's discretion.

#### Portfolio Manager

Mr. Gregory H. Sachs, Founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sachs Capital Group LP, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer of SCG Asset Management LLC, is the Fund's portfolio manager.

Mr. Sachs is also the founder and former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Deerfield Capital Management LLC. In 1993, Mr. Sachs founded Deerfield Capital Management LLC in Chicago where he served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. In its early years, Deerfield focused solely on fixed income arbitrage and relative value trading strategies based on the identification of anomalies in global fixed income, futures, options, and derivative markets. In 2004 Mr. Sachs sold a controlling interest in Deerfield to Triarc [NYSE:TRY]. Together they sold the company in 2007 to a public REIT that Deerfield managed [NYSE:DFR]. When Deerfield was sold, it had approximately \$17 Billion under management. He received both an M.S. in Quantitative Analysis and Finance and a B.B.A. in Actuarial Science and Quantitative Analysis from the University of Wisconsin at Madison.

The Statement of Additional Information provides additional information about the Fund's portfolio manager's compensation, other accounts managed and ownership of Fund shares.

# Administrator, Accounting Agent and Transfer Agent

Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC, located at 4221 North 203<sup>rd</sup> Street, Suite 100, Elkhorn, NE 68022, serves as Administrator, Accounting Agent and Transfer Agent. Effective February 1, 2019, NorthStar Financial Services Group, LLC, the parent company of Gemini Fund Solutions, LLC and its affiliated companies including Northern Lights Distributors, LLC and Northern Lights Compliance Services, LLC (collectively, the "Gemini Companies"), sold its interest in the Gemini Companies to a third party private equity firm that contemporaneously acquired Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC (an independent mutual fund administration firm) and its affiliates (collectively, the "Ultimus Companies"). As a result of these separate transactions, the Gemini Companies and the Ultimus Companies are now indirectly owned through a common parent entity, The Ultimus Group, LLC.

UFS receives the following fees: for administrative services, the Fund pays UFS an annual fund administration fee that is an asset based fee, which scales downward based upon net assets of the Fund. The Fund also pays UFS for any out-of-pocket expenses; for accounting services the Fund pays the UFS a minimum annual fee of \$24,000 minimum or an asset based fee, which scales downward based upon net assets of the Fund, plus out-of-pocket expenses; for transfer agent services, the Fund pays UFS and transfer agent per account fee per account. The Fund also pays the Administrator for any out-of-pocket expenses. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 the Fund paid \$29,816, \$33,535, and \$33,477, respectively for administration, accounting, and transfer agency fees, respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 the Fund paid \$35,071, \$29,372, and \$29,518, respectively for administration, accounting, and transfer agency fees, respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 the Fund paid \$47,903, \$29,329, and \$32,532, respectively for administration, accounting, and transfer agency fees, respectively.

#### Custodian

U.S. Bank N.A., with principal offices at 1555 N. River Center Drive, Milwaukee, WI 53212 serves as custodian for the securities and cash of the Fund's portfolio. Under a Custody Agreement, U.S. Bank holds the Fund's assets in safekeeping and keeps all necessary records and documents relating to its duties.

# **Fund Expenses**

The Adviser is obligated to pay expenses associated with providing the services stated in the Investment Management Agreement, including compensation of and office space for its officers and employees connected with investment and economic research, trading and investment management and administration of the Fund. The Adviser is obligated to pay the fees of any Trustee of the Fund who is affiliated with it.

UFS is obligated to pay expenses associated with providing the services contemplated by a Fund Services Administration Agreement (administration, accounting and transfer agent), including compensation of and office space for its officers and employees and administration of the Fund.

The Fund pays all other expenses incurred in the operation of the Fund including, among other things, (i) expenses for legal and independent accountants' services, (ii) costs of printing proxies, share certificates, if any, and reports to shareholders, (iii) charges of the custodian and transfer agent in connection with the Fund's dividend reinvestment policy, (iv) fees and expenses of independent Trustees, (v) printing costs, (vi) membership fees in trade association, (vii) fidelity bond coverage for the Fund's officers and Trustees, (viii) errors and omissions insurance for the Fund's officers and Trustees, (ix) brokerage costs, (x) taxes, (xi) costs associated with the Fund's quarterly repurchase offers, (xii) servicing fees and (xiii) other extraordinary or non-recurring expenses and other expenses properly payable by the Fund. The expenses incident to the offering and issuance of shares to be issued by the Fund will be recorded as a reduction of capital of the Fund attributable to the shares.

Class A and Class C shares are subject to a monthly shareholder servicing fee at an annual rate of 0.25% of the average daily net assets of the Fund attributable to the respective share class.

The Investment Management Agreement authorizes the Adviser to select brokers or dealers (including affiliates) to arrange for the purchase and sale of Fund securities, including principal transactions. Any commission, fee or other remuneration paid to an affiliated broker or dealer is paid in compliance with the Fund's procedures adopted in accordance with Rule 17e-1 under the 1940 Act.

#### **Control Persons**

A control person is one who owns, either directly or indirectly more than 25% of the voting securities of a company or acknowledges the existence of control. As of September 7, 2023, the following shareholder of record owned more than 25% of the outstanding shares of the Fund, as noted.

Name & Address	Shares	Percentage of Fund
Gregory H. Sachs TTEE of the		
Gregory H. Sachs Revocable Trust	1 461 226	44.15%
2132 Deep Water Lane, Suite 240A	1,461,236	44.13%
Naperville, IL 60564		

# **DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE**

The net asset value of shares of the Fund is determined daily, as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE (normally, 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time). Class A shares are offered at net asset value plus the applicable sales load. Class C and Class I shares are offered at net asset value. During the continuous offering, the price of the shares will increase or decrease on a daily basis according to the net asset value of the shares. In computing net asset value, portfolio securities of the Fund are valued at their current market values determined on the basis of market quotations. If market quotations are not readily available, securities are valued at fair value as determined by the Board of Trustees. The Board has delegated the day to day responsibility for determining these fair values in accordance with the policies it has approved to the Adviser. Fair valuation involves subjective judgments, and it is possible that the fair value determined for a security may differ materially from the value that could be realized upon the sale of the security. There is no single standard for determining the fair value of a security. Rather, in determining the fair value of a security for which there are no readily available market quotations, the Adviser may consider several factors, including fundamental analytical data relating to the investment in the security, the nature and duration of any restriction on the disposition of the security, the cost of the security at the date of purchase, the liquidity of the market for the security and the recommendation of the Fund's Portfolio Manager.

The Adviser will provide the Board with periodic reports, no less frequently than quarterly, that discuss the functioning of the valuation process, if applicable to that period, and that identify issues and valuations problems that have arisen, if any. To the extent deemed necessary by the Adviser, the Valuation Committee of the Board will review any securities valued by the Adviser in accordance with the Fund's valuation policies. The Board has delegated execution of these procedures to a fair value team composed of one or more officers from each of the (i) Trust, (ii) administrator, and (iii) Adviser. The team may also enlist third party consultants such as an audit firm or financial officer of a security issuer on an as-needed basis to assist in determining a security-specific fair value. The Board reviews and ratifies the execution of this process and the resultant fair value prices at least quarterly to assure the process produces reliable results.

Non-dollar-denominated securities, if any, are valued as of the close of the NYSE at the closing price of such securities in their principal trading market, but may be valued at fair value if subsequent events occurring before the computation of net asset value materially have affected the value of the securities. Trading may take place in foreign issues held by the Fund, if any, at times when the Fund is not open for business. As a result, the Fund's net asset value may change at times when it is not possible to purchase or sell shares of the Fund. The Fund may use a third-party pricing service to assist it in determining the market value of securities in the Fund's portfolio. The Fund's net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the value of the Fund's total assets (the value of the securities the Fund holds plus cash or other assets, including interest accrued but not yet received), less accrued expenses of the Fund, less the Fund's other liabilities by the total number of shares outstanding.

For purposes of determining the net asset value of the Fund, readily marketable portfolio securities listed on the NYSE are valued, except as indicated below, at the last sale price reflected on the consolidated tape at the close of the NYSE on the business day as of which such value is being determined. If there has been no sale on such day, the securities are valued at the mean of the closing bid and asked prices on such day. If no bid or asked prices are quoted on such day or if market prices may be unreliable because of events occurring after the close of trading, then the security is valued by such method as the Board shall determine in good faith to reflect its fair market value. Readily marketable securities not listed on the NYSE but listed on other domestic or foreign securities exchanges are valued in a like manner. Portfolio securities traded on more than one securities exchange are valued at the last sale price on the business day as of which such value is being determined as reflected on the consolidated tape at the close of the exchange representing the principal market for such securities. Securities trading on the NASDAQ are valued at the closing price.

Readily marketable securities traded in the over-the-counter market, including listed securities whose primary market is believed by the Adviser to be over-the-counter, are valued at the mean of the current bid and asked prices as reported by the NASDAQ or, in the case of securities not reported by the NASDAQ or a comparable source, as the Board deems appropriate to reflect their fair market value. Where securities are traded on more than one exchange and also over-the-counter, the securities will generally be valued using the quotations the Board believes reflect most closely the value of such securities.

# **CONFLICTS OF INTEREST**

As a general matter, certain conflicts of interest may arise in connection with a portfolio manager's management of a fund's investments, on the one hand, and the investments of other accounts for which the portfolio manager is responsible, on the other. For example, it is possible that the various accounts managed could have different investment strategies that, at times, might conflict with one another to the possible detriment of the Fund. Alternatively, to the extent that the same investment opportunities might be desirable for more than one account, possible conflicts could arise in determining how to allocate them. Other potential conflicts might include conflicts created by specific portfolio manager compensation arrangements, and conflicts relating to selection of brokers or dealers to execute Fund portfolio trades and/or specific uses of commissions from Fund portfolio trades (for example, research, or "soft dollars", if any). The Adviser has adopted policies and procedures and has structured its portfolio managers' compensation in a manner reasonably designed to safeguard the Fund from being negatively affected as a result of any such potential conflicts.

# **QUARTERLY REPURCHASES OF SHARES**

Once each quarter, the Fund will offer to repurchase at net asset value no less than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Fund, unless such offer is suspended or postponed in accordance with regulatory requirements (as discussed below). The offer to purchase shares is a fundamental policy that may not be changed without the vote of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities (as defined in the 1940 Act). Shareholders will be notified in writing of each quarterly repurchase offer and the date the repurchase offer ends (the "Repurchase Request Deadline"). Shares will be repurchased at the NAV per share determined as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE no later than the 14th day after the Repurchase Request Deadline, or the next business day if the 14th day is not a business day (each a "Repurchase Pricing Date").

Shareholders will be notified in writing about each quarterly repurchase offer, how they may request that the Fund repurchase their shares and the "Repurchase Request Deadline," which is the date the repurchase offer ends. Shares tendered for repurchase by shareholders prior to any Repurchase Request Deadline will be repurchased subject to the aggregate repurchase amounts established for that Repurchase Request Deadline. The time between the notification to shareholders and the Repurchase Request Deadline is generally 30 days, but may vary from no more than 42 days to no less than 21 days. Payment pursuant to the repurchase will be made by checks to the shareholder's address of record, or credited directly to a predetermined bank account on the Purchase Payment Date, which will be no more than seven days after the Repurchase Pricing Date. The Board may establish other policies for repurchases of shares that are consistent with the 1940 Act, regulations thereunder and other pertinent laws.

# **Determination of Repurchase Offer Amount**

The Board, or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion, will determine the number of shares that the Fund will offer to repurchase (the "Repurchase Offer Amount") for a given Repurchase Request Deadline. The Repurchase Offer Amount, however, will be no less than 5% and no more than 25% of the total number of shares outstanding on the Repurchase Request Deadline.

If shareholders tender for repurchase more than the Repurchase Offer Amount for a given repurchase offer, the Fund will repurchase the shares on a pro rata basis. However, the Fund may accept all shares tendered for repurchase by shareholders who own less than one hundred shares and who tender all of their shares, before prorating other amounts tendered. In addition, the Fund will accept the total number of shares tendered in connection with required minimum distributions from an IRA or other qualified retirement plan. It is the shareholder's obligation to both notify and provide the Fund supporting documentation of a required minimum distribution from an IRA or other qualified retirement plan.

# **Notice to Shareholders**

Approximately 30 days (but no less than 21 days and more than 42 days) before each Repurchase Request Deadline, the Fund shall send to each shareholder of record and to each beneficial owner of the shares that are the subject of the repurchase offer a notification ("Shareholder Notification"). The Shareholder Notification will contain information shareholders should consider in deciding whether or not to tender their shares for repurchase. The notice also will include detailed instructions on how to tender shares for repurchase, state the Repurchase Offer Amount and identify the dates of the Repurchase Request Deadline, the scheduled Repurchase Pricing Date, and the date the repurchase proceeds are scheduled for payment (the "Repurchase Payment Deadline"). If you own an IRA or other retirement plan, you must indicate on your Quarterly Repurchase Offer form whether the Fund should withhold federal income tax. Unless you elect in your repurchase request that you do not want federal tax withheld, the repurchase will be subject to withholding. All redemption request forms must be in proper form. The notice also will set forth the NAV that has been computed no more than seven days before the date of notification, and how shareholders may ascertain the NAV after the notification date.

Medallion Signature Guarantee may be required if (i) repurchase offers are greater than or equal to \$100,000; (ii) proceeds of the repurchase are to be made payable via check to someone other than the registered accounts owner; or (iii) proceeds are to be made payable as the account is registered but mailed to an address other than the address of record on the account.

# Repurchase Price

The repurchase price of the shares will be the NAV as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE on the Repurchase Pricing Date. You may call 1-833-860-1407 to learn the NAV. The notice of the repurchase offer also will provide information concerning the NAV, such as the NAV as of a recent date or a sampling of recent NAVs, and a toll-free number for information regarding the repurchase offer.

# **Early Withdrawal Charge**

Selling brokers, or other financial intermediaries that have entered into distribution agreements with the Distributor may receive a commission of up to 1.00% of the purchase price of Class C shares.

Class C shareholders who tender for repurchase of such shareholder's Class C Shares such that they will have been held less than 365 days after purchase, as of the time of repurchase, will be subject to an early withdrawal charge of 1.00% of the original purchase price. The Distributor may waive the imposition of the early withdrawal charge in the following situations: (1) shareholder death or (2) shareholder disability. Any such waiver does not imply that the early withdrawal charge will be waived at any time in the future or that such early withdrawal charge will be waived for any other shareholder. Class A and Class I shares will not be subject to an early withdrawal charge.

# **Repurchase Amounts and Payment of Proceeds**

Shares tendered for repurchase by shareholders prior to any Repurchase Request Deadline will be repurchased subject to the aggregate Repurchase Offer Amount established for that Repurchase Request Deadline. Payment pursuant to the repurchase offer will be made by check to the shareholder's address of record, or credited directly to a predetermined bank account on the Purchase Payment Date, which will be no more than seven days after the Repurchase Pricing Date. The Board may establish other policies for repurchases of shares that are consistent with the 1940 Act, regulations thereunder and other pertinent laws.

If shareholders tender for repurchase more than the Repurchase Offer Amount for a given repurchase offer, the Fund may, but is not required to, repurchase an additional amount of shares not to exceed 2% of the outstanding shares of the Fund on the Repurchase Request Deadline. If the Fund determines not to repurchase more than the Repurchase Offer Amount, or if shareholders tender shares in an amount exceeding the Repurchase Offer Amount plus 2% of the outstanding shares on the Repurchase Request Deadline, the Fund will repurchase the shares on a pro rata basis. However, the Fund may accept all shares tendered for repurchase by shareholders who own less than one hundred shares and who tender all of their shares, before prorating other amounts tendered. In addition, the Fund will accept the total number of shares tendered in connection with required minimum distributions from an IRA or other qualified retirement plan. It is the shareholder's obligation to both notify and provide the Fund supporting documentation of a required minimum distribution from an IRA or other qualified retirement plan.

# Suspension or Postponement of Repurchase Offer

The Fund may suspend or postpone a repurchase offer only: (a) if making or effecting the repurchase offer would cause the Fund to lose its status as a regulated investment company under the Code; (b) for any period during which the NYSE or any market on which the securities owned by the Fund are principally traded is closed, other than customary weekend and holiday closings, or during which trading in such market is restricted; (c) for any period during which an emergency exists as a result of which disposal by the Fund of securities owned by it is not reasonably practicable, or during which it is not reasonably practicable for the Fund fairly to determine the value of its net assets; or (d) for such other periods as the Commission may by order permit for the protection of shareholders of the Fund.

# **Liquidity Requirements**

The Fund must maintain liquid assets equal to the Repurchase Offer Amount from the time that the notice is sent to shareholders until the Repurchase Pricing Date. The Fund will ensure that a percentage of its net assets equal to at least 100% of the Repurchase Offer Amount consists of assets that can be sold or disposed of in the ordinary course of business at approximately the price at which the Fund has valued the investment within the time period between the Repurchase Request Deadline and the Repurchase Payment Deadline. The Board has adopted procedures that are reasonably designed to ensure that the Fund's assets are sufficiently liquid so that the Fund can comply with the repurchase offer and the liquidity requirements described in the previous paragraph. If, at any time, the Fund falls out of compliance with these liquidity requirements, the Board will take whatever action it deems appropriate to ensure compliance.

# **Consequences of Repurchase Offers**

Repurchase offers will typically be funded from available cash or sales of portfolio securities. Payment for repurchased shares, however, may require the Fund to liquidate portfolio holdings earlier than the Adviser otherwise would, thus increasing the Fund's portfolio turnover and potentially causing the Fund to realize losses. The Adviser intends to take measures to attempt to avoid or minimize such potential losses and turnover, and instead of liquidating portfolio holdings, may borrow money to finance repurchases of shares. If the Fund borrows to finance repurchases, interest on that borrowing will negatively affect shareholders who do not tender their shares in a repurchase offer by increasing the Fund's expenses and reducing any net investment income. To the extent the Fund finances repurchase amounts by selling Fund investments, the Fund may hold a larger proportion of its assets in less liquid securities. The sale of portfolio securities to fund repurchases also could reduce the market price of those underlying securities, which in turn would reduce the Fund's net asset value.

Repurchase of the Fund's shares will tend to reduce the amount of outstanding shares and, depending upon the Fund's investment performance, its net assets. A reduction in the Fund's net assets would increase the Fund's expense ratio, to the extent that additional shares are not sold and expenses otherwise remain the same (or increase). In addition, the repurchase of shares by the Fund will be a taxable event to shareholders.

The Fund is intended as a long-term investment. The Fund's quarterly repurchase offers are a shareholder's only means of liquidity with respect to his or her shares. Shareholders have no rights to redeem or transfer their shares, other than limited rights of a shareholder's descendants to redeem shares in the event of such shareholder's death pursuant to certain conditions and restrictions. The shares are not traded on a national securities exchange and no secondary market exists for the shares, nor does the Fund expect a secondary market for its shares to exist in the future.

# **DISTRIBUTION POLICY**

# **Quarterly Distribution Policy**

The Fund intends to make a dividend distribution each quarter to its shareholders of the net investment income of the Fund after payment of Fund operating expenses. The dividend rate may be modified by the Board from time to time. If, for any quarterly distribution, investment company taxable income (which term includes net short-term capital gain), if any, and net tax-exempt income, if any, is less than the amount of the distribution, then assets of the Fund will be sold and the difference will generally be a tax-free return of capital distributed from the Fund's assets. Return of capital represents a return of your original investment and is not generated from the Fund's investment income profits. The Fund's final distribution for each calendar year will include any remaining investment company taxable income and net tax-exempt income undistributed during the year, as well as all net capital gain realized during the year. If the total distributions made in any calendar year exceed investment company taxable income, net tax-exempt income and net capital gain, such excess distributed amount would be treated as ordinary dividend income to the extent of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits. Distributions in excess of the earnings and profits would first be a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the adjusted tax basis in the shares. After such adjusted tax basis is reduced to zero, the distribution would constitute capital gain (assuming the shares are held as capital assets). This distribution policy may, under certain circumstances, have certain adverse consequences to the Fund and its shareholders because it may result in a return of capital resulting in less of a shareholder's assets being invested in the Fund and, over time, increase the Fund's expense ratio. The distribution policy also may cause the Fund to sell a security at a time it would not otherwise do so in order to manage the distribution of income and gain. The initial distribution will be declared on a date determined by the Board. If the Fund's investments are delayed, the initial distribution may consist principally of a return of capital.

Unless the registered owner of shares elects to receive cash, all dividends declared on shares will be automatically reinvested in additional shares of the Fund. See "Dividend Reinvestment Policy."

The dividend distribution described above may result in the payment of approximately the same amount or percentage to the Fund's shareholders each quarter. Section 19(a) of the 1940 Act and Rule 19a-1 thereunder require the Fund to provide a written statement accompanying any such payment that adequately discloses its source or sources. Thus, if the source of the dividend or other distribution were the original capital contribution of the shareholder, and the payment amounted to a return of capital, the Fund would be required to provide written disclosure to that effect. A return of capital constitutes a return of a shareholder's original investment. Nevertheless, persons who periodically receive the payment of a dividend or other distribution may be under the impression that they are receiving net profits when they are not. Shareholders should read any written disclosure provided pursuant to Section 19(a) and Rule 19a-1 carefully and should not assume that the source of any distribution from the Fund is net profit.

The Board reserves the right to change the quarterly distribution policy from time to time.

# DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT POLICY

The Fund will operate under a dividend reinvestment policy administered by UFS (the "Agent"). Pursuant to the policy, the Fund's income dividends or capital gains or other distributions (each, a "Distribution" and collectively, "Distributions"), net of any applicable U.S. withholding tax, are reinvested in shares of the Fund.

Shareholders automatically participate in the dividend reinvestment policy, unless and until an election is made to withdraw from the policy on behalf of such participating shareholder. Shareholders who do not wish to have Distributions automatically reinvested should so notify the Agent in writing at Alternative Strategies Income Fund, c/o Ultimus Fund Services, LLC, 4221 North 203<sup>rd</sup> Street, Suite 100, Elkhorn, NE 68022. Such written notice must be received by the Agent 30 days prior to the record date of the Distribution or the shareholder will receive such Distribution in shares through the dividend reinvestment policy. Under the dividend reinvestment policy, the Fund's Distributions to shareholders are reinvested in full and fractional shares as described below.

When the Fund declares a Distribution, the Agent, on the shareholder's behalf, will receive additional authorized shares from the Fund either newly issued or repurchased from shareholders by the Fund and held as treasury stock. The number of shares to be received when Distributions are reinvested will be determined by dividing the amount of the Distribution by the Fund's net asset value per share.

The Agent will maintain all shareholder accounts and furnish written confirmations of all transactions in the accounts, including information needed by shareholders for personal and tax records. The Agent will hold shares in the account of the shareholders in non-certificated form in the name of the participant, and each shareholder's proxy, if any, will include those shares purchased pursuant to the dividend reinvestment policy. Each participant, nevertheless, has the right to request certificates for whole and fractional shares owned. The Fund will issue certificates in its sole discretion. The Agent will distribute all proxy solicitation materials, if any, to participating shareholders.

In the case of shareholders, such as banks, brokers or nominees, that hold shares for others who are beneficial owners participating under the dividend reinvestment policy, the Agent will administer the dividend reinvestment policy on the basis of the number of shares certified from time to time by the record shareholder as representing the total amount of shares registered in the shareholder's name and held for the account of beneficial owners participating under the dividend reinvestment policy.

Neither the Agent nor the Fund shall have any responsibility or liability beyond the exercise of ordinary care for any action taken or omitted pursuant to the dividend reinvestment policy, nor shall they have any duties, responsibilities or liabilities except such as expressly set forth herein. Neither shall they be liable hereunder for any act done in good faith or for any good faith omissions to act, including, without limitation, failure to terminate a participant's account prior to receipt of written notice of his or her death or with respect to prices at which shares are purchased or sold for the participants account and the terms on which such purchases and sales are made, subject to applicable provisions of the federal securities laws.

The automatic reinvestment of Dividends will not relieve participants of any federal, state or local income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such Dividends. See "U.S. Federal Income Tax Matters."

The Fund reserves the right to amend or terminate the dividend reinvestment policy. There is no direct service charge to participants with regard to purchases under the dividend reinvestment policy; however, the Fund reserves the right to amend the dividend reinvestment policy to include a service charge payable by the participants.

All correspondence concerning the dividend reinvestment policy should be directed to the Agent at Alternative Strategies Income Fund, c/o Ultimus Fund Services, LLC, 4221 North 203<sup>rd</sup> Street, Suite 100, Elkhorn, NE 68022. Certain transactions can be performed by calling the toll-free number 1-833-860-1407.

# U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX MATTERS

The following briefly summarizes some of the important federal income tax consequences to shareholders of investing in the Fund's shares, reflects the federal tax law as of the date of this prospectus, and does not address special tax rules applicable to certain types of investors, such as corporate, tax-exempt and foreign investors. Investors should consult their tax advisers regarding other federal, state or local tax considerations that may be applicable in their particular circumstances, as well as any proposed tax law changes.

The following is a summary discussion of certain U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to a shareholder of the Fund that acquires, holds and/or disposes of shares of the Fund, and reflects provisions of the Code, existing Treasury regulations, rulings published by the IRS, and other applicable authority, as of the date of this prospectus. These authorities are subject to change by legislative or administrative action, possibly with retroactive effect. The following discussion is only a summary of some of the important tax considerations generally applicable to investments in the Fund and the discussion set forth herein does not constitute tax advice. For more detailed information regarding tax considerations, see the Statement of Additional Information. There may be other tax considerations applicable to particular investors such as those holding shares in a tax deferred account such as an IRA or 401(k) plan. In addition, income earned through an investment in the Fund may be subject to state, local and foreign taxes.

The Fund elected to be treated and to qualify each year for taxation as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Code. In order for the Fund to qualify as a regulated investment company, it must meet an income and asset diversification test each year. If the Fund so qualifies and satisfies certain distribution requirements, the Fund (but not its shareholders) will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its investment company taxable income and net capital gains (the excess of net long-term capital gains over net short-term capital loss) in a timely manner to its shareholders in the form of dividends or capital gain distributions. The Code imposes a 4% nondeductible excise tax on regulated investment companies, such as the Fund, to the extent they do not meet certain distribution requirements by the end of each calendar year. The Fund anticipates meeting these distribution requirements.

The Fund intends to make distributions of investment company taxable income after payment of the Fund's operating expenses no less frequently than annually. Unless a shareholder is ineligible to participate or elects otherwise, all distributions will be automatically reinvested in additional shares of the Fund pursuant to the dividend reinvestment policy. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, all dividends are generally taxable whether a shareholder takes them in cash or they are reinvested pursuant to the policy in additional shares of the Fund. Distributions of the Fund's investment company taxable income (including short-term capital gains) will generally be treated as ordinary income to the extent of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits. Distributions of the Fund's net capital gains ("capital gain dividends"), if any, are taxable to shareholders as capital gains, regardless of the length of time shares have been held by shareholders. Distributions, if any, in excess of the Fund's earnings and profits will first reduce the adjusted tax basis of a holder's shares and, after that basis has been reduced to zero, will constitute capital gains to the shareholder of the Fund (assuming the shares are held as a capital asset). A corporation that owns Fund shares generally will not be entitled to the dividends received deduction with respect to all of the dividends it receives from the Fund. Fund dividend payments that are attributable to qualifying dividends received by the Fund from certain domestic corporations may be designated by the Fund as being eligible for the dividends received deduction. There can be no assurance as to what portion of Fund dividend payments may be classified as qualifying dividends. The determination of the character for U.S. federal income tax purposes of any distribution from the Fund (i.e. ordinary income dividends, capital gains dividends, qualified dividends or return of capital distributions) will be made as of the end of the Fund's taxable year. Generally, no later than 60 days after the close of its taxable year, the Fund will provide shareholders with a written notice designating the amount of any capital gain distributions and any other distributions. The Fund has chosen average cost as its standing (default) tax lot identification method for all shareholders, which means this is the method the Fund will use to determine which specific shares are deemed to be sold when there are multiple purchases on different dates at differing NAVs, and the entire position is not sold at one time.

The Fund will inform its shareholders of the source and tax status of all distributions promptly after the close of each calendar year.

# **DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHARES**

The Fund is an unincorporated statutory trust established under the laws of the State of Delaware upon the filing of a Certificate of Trust with the Secretary of State of Delaware on June 15, 2010. The Fund's Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust (the "Declaration of Trust") provides that the Trustees of the Fund may authorize separate classes of shares of beneficial interest. The Trustees have authorized an unlimited number of shares, subject to a \$5 billion limit on the Fund. The Fund does not intend to hold annual meetings of its shareholders.

# **Shares**

The Declaration of Trust, which has been filed with the SEC, permits the Fund to issue an unlimited number of full and fractional shares of beneficial interest, no par value. The Fund offers three different classes of shares: Class A, Class C and Class I shares. The Fund began continuously offering its common shares on September 28, 2010. As of October 31, 2016, the Fund simultaneously redesignated its issued and outstanding common shares as Class A and Class C shares and created its Class I shares. An investment in any share class of the Fund represents an investment in the same assets of the Fund. However, the sales loads and ongoing fees and expenses for each share class are different. The fees and expenses for the Fund are set forth in "Summary of Fund Expenses." The details of each share class is set forth in "Plan of Distribution."

Holders of shares will be entitled to the payment of dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of Trustees. The Fund currently intends to make dividend distributions to its shareholders after payment of Fund operating expenses including interest on outstanding borrowings, if any, no less frequently than quarterly. Unless the registered owner of shares elects to receive cash, all dividends declared on shares will be automatically reinvested for shareholders in additional shares of the Fund. See "Dividend Reinvestment Policy." The 1940 Act may limit the payment of dividends to the holders of shares. Each whole share shall be entitled to one vote as to matters on which it is entitled to vote pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust on file with the SEC. Upon liquidation of the Fund, after paying or adequately providing for the payment of all liabilities of the Fund, and upon receipt of such releases, indemnities and refunding agreements as they deem necessary for their protection, the Trustees may distribute the remaining assets of the Fund among its shareholders. The shares are not liable to further calls or to assessment by the Fund. There are no pre-emptive rights associated with the shares. The Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund's shareholders are not liable for any liabilities of the Fund. Although shareholders of an unincorporated statutory trust established under Delaware law, in certain limited circumstances, may be held personally liable for the obligations of the Fund as though they were general partners, the provisions of the Declaration of Trust described in the foregoing sentence make the likelihood of such personal liability remote.

The Fund generally will not issue share certificates. However, upon written request to the Fund's transfer agent, a share certificate may be issued at the Fund's discretion for any or all of the full shares credited to an investor's account. Share certificates that have been issued to an investor may be returned at any time. The Fund's transfer agent will maintain an account for each shareholder upon which the registration of shares are recorded, and transfers, permitted only in rare circumstances, such as death or bona fide gift, will be reflected by bookkeeping entry, without physical delivery. UFS will require that a shareholder provide requests in writing, accompanied by a valid signature guarantee form, when changing certain information in an account such as wiring instructions or telephone privileges.

The following table shows the amounts of Fund shares that have been authorized and are outstanding as of September 6, 2023:

(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)
			Amount Outstanding
Title	Amount	Amount Held by	Excluding Amount
of Class	Authorized	Fund or for its Account	Shown Under(3)
Class A Shares	Unlimited*	None	1,038,552
Class C Shares	Unlimited*	None	261,611
Class I Shares	Unlimited*	None	2,009,214

subject to a \$5 billion limit on the Fund

# ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS IN THE DECLARATION OF TRUST

The Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust includes provisions that could have the effect of limiting the ability of other entities or persons to acquire control of the Fund or to change the composition of the Board of Trustees, and could have the effect of depriving the Fund's shareholders of an opportunity to sell their shares at a premium over prevailing market prices, if any, by discouraging a third party from seeking to obtain control of the Fund. These provisions may have the effect of discouraging attempts to acquire control of the Fund, which attempts could have the effect of increasing the expenses of the Fund and interfering with the normal operation of the Fund. The Trustees are elected for indefinite terms and do not stand for reelection. A Trustee may be removed from office without cause only by a written instrument signed or adopted by a majority of the remaining Trustees or by a vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the class of shares of the Fund that are entitled to elect a Trustee and that are entitled to vote on the matter. The Declaration of Trust does not contain any other specific inhibiting provisions that would operate only with respect to an extraordinary transaction such as a merger, reorganization, tender offer, sale or transfer of substantially all of the Fund's asset, or liquidation. Reference should be made to the Declaration of Trust on file with the SEC for the full text of these provisions.

# PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (the "Distributor") located at 640 5<sup>th</sup> Avenue, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor, New York, NY 10019 is serving as the Fund's principal underwriter and acts as the distributor of the Fund's shares on a best efforts basis, subject to various conditions. The Fund's shares are offered for sale through the Distributor at net asset value plus the applicable sales load. The Distributor also may enter into selected dealer agreements with other broker dealers for the sale and distribution of the Fund's shares. In reliance on Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Fund intends to offer to sell up to \$5,000,000,000 of its shares, on a continual basis, through the Distributor. No arrangement has been made to place funds received in an escrow, trust or similar account. The Distributor is not required to sell any specific number or dollar amount of the Fund's shares, but will use its best efforts to sell the shares. Shares of the Fund will not be listed on any national securities exchange and the Distributor will not act as a market marker in Fund shares. The Class C shares will pay to the Distributor a Distribution Fee that will accrue at an annual rate equal to 0.75% of the Fund's average daily net assets attributable to Class C shares and is payable on a quarterly basis. Class A and Class I shares are not currently subject to a Distribution Fee.

The Adviser or its affiliates, in the Adviser's discretion and from their own resources, may pay additional compensation to brokers or dealers in connection with the sale and distribution of Fund shares (the "Additional Compensation"). In return for the Additional Compensation, the Fund may receive certain marketing advantages including access to a broker's or dealer's registered representatives, placement on a list of investment options offered by a broker or dealer, or the ability to assist in training and educating the broker's or dealer's registered representatives. The Additional Compensation may differ among brokers or dealers in amount or in the manner of calculation: payments of Additional Compensation may be fixed dollar amounts, or based on the aggregate value of outstanding shares held by shareholders introduced by the broker or dealer, or determined in some other manner. The receipt of Additional Compensation by a selling broker or dealer may create potential conflicts of interest between an investor and its broker or dealer who is recommending the Fund over other potential investments. Additionally, the Adviser or its affiliates pay a servicing fee to the Distributor and to other selected securities dealers and other financial industry professionals for providing ongoing broker-dealer services in respect of clients with whom they have distributed shares of the Fund. Such services may include electronic processing of client orders, electronic fund transfers between clients and the Fund, account reconciliations with the Fund's transfer agent, facilitation of electronic delivery to clients of Fund documentation, monitoring client accounts for back-up withholding and any other special tax reporting obligations, maintenance of books and records with respect to the foregoing, and such other information and liaison services as the Fund or the Adviser may reasonably request.

The Fund and the Adviser have agreed to indemnify the Distributor against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, or to contribute to payments the Distributor may be required to make because of any of those liabilities. Such agreement does not include indemnification of the Distributor against liability resulting from willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence on the part of the Distributor in the performance of its duties or from reckless disregard by the Distributor of its obligations and duties under the Distribution Agreement. The Distributor may, from time to time, engage in transactions with or perform services for the Adviser and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business.

Prior to the initial public offering of shares, the Adviser purchased shares from the Fund in an amount satisfying the net worth requirements of Section 14(a) of the 1940 Act.

# **PURCHASE TERMS**

# **Purchasing Shares**

Investors may purchase shares directly from the Fund in accordance with the instructions below. Investors will be assessed fees for returned checks and stop payment orders at prevailing rates charged by Ultimus Fund Services, LLC, the Fund's administrator. The returned check and stop payment fee is currently \$25. Investors may buy and sell shares of the Fund through financial intermediaries and their agents that have made arrangements with the Fund and are authorized to buy and sell shares of the Fund (collectively, "Financial Intermediaries"). Orders will be priced at the appropriate price next computed after it is received by a Financial Intermediary and accepted by the Fund. A Financial Intermediary may hold shares in an omnibus account in the Financial Intermediary's name or the Financial Intermediary may maintain individual ownership records. The Fund may pay the Financial Intermediary for maintaining individual ownership records as well as providing other shareholder services. Financial intermediaries may charge fees for the services they provide in connection with processing your transaction order or maintaining an investor's account with them. Investors should check with their Financial Intermediary to determine if it is subject to these arrangements. Financial Intermediaries are responsible for placing orders correctly and promptly with the Fund, forwarding payment promptly. Orders transmitted with a Financial Intermediary before the close of regular trading (generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) on a day that the NYSE is open for business, will be priced based on the Fund's NAV next computed after it is received by the Financial Intermediary.

Investors may be charged a fee if they effect transactions through an intermediary, broker or agent. The Fund has authorized one or more brokers to receive on its behalf purchase and redemption orders. Such brokers are authorized to designate other intermediaries to receive purchase and redemption orders on the Fund's behalf. The Fund will be deemed to have received a purchase or redemption order when an authorized broker or, if applicable, a broker's authorized designee, receives the order. Customer orders will be priced at the Fund's NAV next computed after they are received by an authorized broker or the broker's authorized designee.

# By Mail

To make an initial purchase by mail, complete an account application and mail the application, together with a check made payable to Alternative Strategies Income Fund to:

# **Alternative Strategies Income Fund**

c/o Ultimus Fund Services, LLC P.O. Box 541150 Omaha, NE 68154

All checks must be in US Dollars drawn on a domestic bank. The Fund will not accept payment in cash or money orders. The Fund also does not accept cashier's checks in amounts of less than \$10,000. To prevent check fraud, the Fund will neither accept third party checks, Treasury checks, credit card checks, traveler's checks or starter checks for the purchase of shares, nor post-dated checks, post-dated on-line bill pay checks, or any conditional purchase order or payment.

The transfer agent will charge a \$25.00 fee against an investor's account, in addition to any loss sustained by the Fund, for any payment that is returned. It is the policy of the Fund not to accept applications under certain circumstances or in amounts considered disadvantageous to shareholders. The Fund reserves the right to reject any application.

# By Wire — Initial Investment

To make an initial investment in the Fund, the transfer agent must receive a completed account application before an investor wires funds. Investors may mail or overnight deliver an account application to the transfer agent. Upon receipt of the completed account application, the transfer agent will establish an account. The account number assigned will be required as part of the instruction that should be provided to an investor's bank to send the wire. An investor's bank must include both the name of the Fund, the account number, and the investor's name so that monies can be correctly applied. If you wish to wire money to make an investment in the Fund, please call the Fund at 1-833-860-1407 for wiring instructions and to notify the Fund that a wire transfer is coming. Any commercial bank can transfer same-day funds via wire. The Fund will normally accept wired funds for investment on the day received if they are received by the Fund's designated bank before the close of regular trading on the NYSE. Your bank may charge you a fee for wiring same-day funds. The bank should transmit funds by wire to:

ABA #: (number provided by calling toll-free number above)
Credit: Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC
Account #: (number provided by calling toll-free number above)
Further Credit:
Alternative Strategies Income Fund
(shareholder registration)
(shareholder account number)

# **By Wire — Subsequent Investments**

Before sending a wire, investors must contact Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC to advise them of the intent to wire funds. This will ensure prompt and accurate credit upon receipt of the wire. Wired funds must be received prior to 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time to be eligible for same day pricing. The Fund, and its agents, including the transfer agent and custodian, are not responsible for the consequences of delays resulting from the banking or Federal Reserve wire system, or from incomplete wiring instructions.

#### **Automatic Investment Plan — Subsequent Investments**

You may participate in the Fund's Automatic Investment Plan, an investment plan that automatically moves money from your bank account and invests it in the Fund through the use of electronic funds transfers or automatic bank drafts. You may elect to make subsequent investments by transfers of a minimum of \$100 on specified days of each month into your established Fund account. Please contact the Fund at 1-833-860-1407 for more information about the Fund's Automatic Investment Plan.

# By Telephone

Investors may purchase additional shares of the Fund by calling 1-833-860-1407. If an investor elected this option on the account application, and the account has been open for at least 15 days, telephone orders will be accepted via electronic funds transfer from your bank account through the Automated Clearing House (ACH) network. Banking information must be established on the account prior to making a purchase. Orders for shares received prior to 4 p.m. Eastern Time will be purchased at the appropriate price calculated on that day.

Telephone trades must be received by or prior to market close. During periods of high market activity, shareholders may encounter higher than usual call waits. Please allow sufficient time to place your telephone transaction.

In compliance with the USA Patriot Act of 2001, UFS will verify certain information on each account application as part of the Fund's Anti-Money Laundering Program. As requested on the application, investors must supply full name, date of birth, social security number and permanent street address. Mailing addresses containing only a P.O. Box will not be accepted. Investors may call Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC at 1-833-860-1407 for additional assistance when completing an application.

If Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC does not have a reasonable belief of the identity of a customer, the account will be rejected or the customer will not be allowed to perform a transaction on the account until such information is received. The Fund also may reserve the right to close the account within 5 business days if clarifying information/documentation is not received.

# **Share Class Considerations**

When selecting a share class, you should consider the following:

- which share classes are available to you;
- how much you intend to invest;
- how long you expect to own the shares; and
- total costs and expenses associated with a particular share class.

Each investor's financial considerations are different. You should speak with your financial advisor to help you decide which share class is best for you. Not all financial intermediaries offer all classes of shares. If your financial intermediary offers more than one class of shares, you should carefully consider which class of shares to purchase.

# **Class A Shares**

Class A shares are sold at the prevailing net asset value per Class A share plus the applicable sales load (which may be reduced as described below); however, the following are additional features that should be taken into account when purchasing Class A shares:

- a minimum initial investment of \$5,000 for regular accounts and \$5,000 retirement plan accounts, and a minimum subsequent investment of (i) \$100 under the Fund's automatic investment program and (ii) \$1,000 if not made pursuant to the automatic investment program; and
- a monthly shareholder servicing fee at an annual rate of up to 0.25% of the average daily net assets of the Fund attributable to Class A shares.

Investors in Class A shares will pay a sales load based on the amount of their investment, but may range from 0.00% to 4.25%, as set forth in the table below. A reallowance will be made by the Distributor from the sales load paid by each investor. A portion of the sales load, up to 0.75%, is paid to the Fund's dealer manager (the "Dealer Manager Fee"). There are no sales loads on reinvested distributions. The Fund reserves the right to waive sales loads. The following sales loads apply to your purchases of Class A shares of the Fund:

	Sales Charge	Sales Charge			Broker
	as a % of	as a % of	Dealer	Dealer	Commission/
<b>Amount Purchased</b>	Offering Price	Amount Invested	Reallowance*	Manager Fee	Total Reallowance
Under \$250,000	4.25%	4.44%	3.50%	0.75%	4.25%
\$250,000 to \$499,999	3.25%	3.36%	2.50%	0.75%	3.25%
\$500,000-\$999,999	2.00%	2.04%	1.50%	0.50%	2.00%
\$1,000,000 and Above	1.25%	1.27%	1.00%	0.25%	1.25%

You may be able to buy Class A shares without a sales charge (i.e. "load-waived") when you are:

- reinvesting dividends or distributions;
- participating in an investment advisory or agency commission program under which you pay a fee to an investment advisor or other firm for portfolio management or brokerage services;
- exchanging an investment in Class A (or equivalent type) shares of another fund for an investment in the Fund;
- a current or former director or Trustee of the Fund;
- an employee (including the employee's spouse, domestic partner, children, grandchildren, parents, grandparents, siblings, and any independent of the employee, as defined in section 152 of the Code) of the Fund's Adviser or its affiliates or of a broker-dealer authorized to sell shares of the Fund; or
- purchasing shares through the Fund's Adviser; or
- purchasing shares through a financial services firm (such as a broker-dealer, investment adviser or financial institution) that has a special arrangement with the Fund.

In addition, concurrent purchases of Class A shares by related accounts may be combined to determine the application of the sales load. The Fund will combine purchases made by an investor, the investor's spouse or domestic partner, and dependent children when it calculates the sales load.

It is the investor's responsibility to determine whether a reduced sales load would apply. The Fund is not responsible for making such determination. To receive a reduced sales load, notification must be provided at the time of the purchase order. If you purchase shares directly from the Fund, you must notify the Fund in writing. Otherwise, notice should be provided to the Financial Intermediary through whom the purchase is made so they can notify the Fund.

#### **Share Conversion**

For investors owning Class A shares, these shares may be convertible into Class I shares if (i) the broker/dealer or other financial intermediary responsible for the shareholder relationship requests such conversion, (ii) Class I shares are available to the broker dealer or financial intermediary, and (iii) the account would have been eligible to purchase Class I shares. More detailed information on Class I shares and the related investment minimums and other restrictions is available below.

# **Right of Accumulation**

For the purposes of determining the applicable reduced sales charge, the right of accumulation allows you to include prior purchases of Class A shares of the Fund as part of your current investment as well as reinvested dividends. To qualify for this option, you must be either:

- an individual;
- an individual and spouse purchasing shares for your own account or trust or custodial accounts for your minor children; or
- a fiduciary purchasing for any one trust, estate or fiduciary account, including employee benefit plans created under sections 401, 403 or 457 of the Internal Revenue Code, including related plans of the same employer.

If you plan to rely on this right of accumulation, you must notify the Fund's distributor at the time of your purchase. You will need to give the Distributor your account numbers. Existing holdings of family members or other related accounts of a shareholder may be combined for purposes of determining eligibility. If applicable, you will need to provide the account numbers of your spouse and your minor children as well as the ages of your minor children.

#### **Letter of Intent**

The letter of intent allows you to count all investments within a 13-month period in Class A shares of the Fund as if you were making them all at once for the purposes of calculating the applicable reduced sales charges. The minimum initial investment under a letter of intent is 5% of the total letter of intent amount. The letter of intent does not preclude the Fund from discontinuing sales of its shares. You may include a purchase not originally made pursuant to a letter of intent under a letter of intent entered into within 90 days of the original purchase. To determine the applicable sales charge reduction, you also may include (1) the cost of Class A shares of the Fund which were previously purchased at a price including a front-end sales charge during the 90-day period prior to the Distributor receiving the letter of intent, and (2) the historical cost of Class A shares of other Funds you currently own acquired in exchange for shares the Fund purchased during that period at a price including a front-end sales charge. You may combine purchases and exchanges by family members (limited to spouse and children, under the age of 21, living in the same household). You should retain any records necessary to substantiate historical costs because the Fund, the transfer agent and any financial intermediaries may not maintain this information. Shares acquired through reinvestment of dividends are not aggregated to achieve the stated investment goal.

#### Class C Shares

Class C shares of the Fund are offered at their NAV without an initial sales charge. This means that 100% of your initial investment is placed into shares of the Fund. Class C shares pay up to 1.00% on an annualized basis of the average daily net assets as reimbursement or compensation for service and distribution-related activities with respect to the Fund and/or shareholder services. Over time, fees paid under this distribution and service plan will increase the cost of a Class C shareholder's investment and may cost more than other types of sales charges.

Brokers that have entered into selling agreements with the Fund's distributor may receive a commission of up to 1.00% of the purchase price of Class C at the time of purchase. Brokers may also receive distribution and/or shareholder service fees for Class C shares held for over a year.

If you redeem Class C shares within one year after purchase, you will be charged an early withdrawal charge ("EWC") of up to 1.00%. The charge will apply to the lesser of the original cost of the Class C shares being redeemed or the proceeds of your redemption and will be calculated without regard to any redemption fee. When you redeem Class C shares, the redemption order is processed so that the lowest early withdrawal charge is charged. Class C shares that are not subject to an early withdrawal charge are redeemed first. In addition, you will not be charged an early withdrawal charge when you redeem shares that you acquired through reinvestment of Fund dividends or capital gains. Any early withdrawal charge paid on the redemptions of Class C shares expressed as a percentage of the applicable redemption amount may be higher or lower than the charge described due to rounding.

The following are additional features that should be taken into account when purchasing Class C shares:

- a minimum initial investment of \$2,500 for regular accounts and \$2,500 for retirement plan accounts, and a minimum subsequent investment of (i) \$100 under the Fund's automatic investment program and (ii) \$1,000 if not made pursuant to the automatic investment program;
- a Distribution Fee which will accrue at an annual rate equal to 0.75% of the average daily net assets of the Fund attributable to Class C shares; and
- an early withdrawal charges equal to 1.00% of the original purchase price of Class C shares repurchased by the Fund for repurchases of Class C shares held less than 365 days following such shareholder's initial purchase.

#### **Class I Shares**

Class I shares will be sold at the prevailing NAV per Class I share and are not subject to any upfront sales charge. Class I shares are not subject to a Distribution Fee, shareholder servicing fees, or early withdrawal charges. Class I shares may only be available through certain financial intermediaries. Because the Class I shares of the Fund are sold at the prevailing NAV per Class I share without an upfront sales charge, the entire amount of your purchase is invested immediately. However, Class I shares require a minimum initial investment of \$100,000 and subsequent investments is \$1,000. Financial intermediaries may aggregate client accounts for purposes of meeting the \$100,000 minimum investment.

#### **Shareholder Service Expenses**

The Fund has adopted a "Shareholder Services Plan" under which the Fund may compensate financial industry professionals for providing ongoing services in respect of clients with whom they have distributed shares of the Fund. Such services may include electronic processing of client orders, electronic fund transfers between clients and the Fund, account reconciliations with the Fund's transfer agent, facilitation of electronic delivery to clients of Fund documentation, monitoring client accounts for back-up withholding and any other special tax reporting obligations, maintenance of books and records with respect to the foregoing, and such other information and liaison services as the Fund or the Adviser may reasonably request. Under the Shareholder Services Plan, the Fund may incur expenses on an annual basis for Class A and Class C shares, equal to 0.25% of its average net assets.

# **Distribution Plan**

The Fund, with respect to its Class C shares, is authorized under a "Distribution Plan" to pay to the Distributor a Distribution Fee for certain activities relating to the distribution of shares to investors and maintenance of shareholder accounts. These activities include marketing and other activities to support the distribution of the Class C shares. The Plan operates in a manner consistent with Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act, which regulates the manner in which an open-end investment company may directly or indirectly bear the expenses of distributing its shares. Although the Fund is not an open-end investment company, it has undertaken to comply with the terms of Rule 12b-1 as a condition of an exemptive order under the 1940 Act which permits it to have asset based distribution fees. Under the Distribution Plan, the Fund pays the Distributor a Distribution Fee at an annual rate of 0.75% of average daily net assets attributable to Class C shares. Class A and Class I shares are not subject to a Distribution Fee.

# **LEGAL MATTERS**

Certain legal matters in connection with the shares will be passed upon for the Fund by Thompson Hine LLP, 41 South High Street, Suite 1700, Columbus, OH 43215.

#### REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Fund will send to its shareholders unaudited semi-annual and audited annual reports, including a list of investments held.

# Householding

In an effort to decrease costs, the Fund intends to reduce the number of duplicate annual and semi-annual reports by sending only one copy of each to those addresses shared by two or more accounts and to shareholders reasonably believed to be from the same family or household. Once implemented, a shareholder must call 1-833-860-1407 to discontinue householding and request individual copies of these documents. Once the Fund receives notice to stop householding, individual copies will be sent beginning thirty days after receiving your request. This policy does not apply to account statements.

# INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Cohen & Company, Ltd. is the independent registered public accounting firm for the Fund and will audit the Fund's financial statements. Cohen & Company, Ltd is located at 1835 Market St., Suite 310 Philadelphia, PA 19103.

# ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The prospectus and the Statement of Additional Information do not contain all of the information set forth in the Registration Statement that the Fund has filed with the SEC (file No. 333-168158). The complete Registration Statement may be obtained from the SEC at <a href="https://www.sec.gov">www.sec.gov</a>. See the cover page of this prospectus for information about how to obtain a paper copy of the Registration Statement or Statement of Additional Information without charge.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

General Information and History		
Investment Objective and Policies	2	
Management of the Fund	14	
Codes of Ethics	19	
Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures	20	
Control Persons and Principal Holders	20	
Investment Advisory and Other Services	21	
Portfolio Manager	22	
Allocation of Brokerage	23	
Tax Status	24	
Other Information	30	
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	31	
Financial Statements	31	

# **PRIVACY NOTICE**

Rev. August 2011

# FACTS WHAT DOES ALTERNATIVE STRATEGIES INCOME FUND DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

# Why? Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to understand what we

#### What?

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with us. This information can include:

- Social Security number
- Assets
- Retirement Assets
- Transaction History
- Checking Account Information
- Purchase History
- Account Balances
- Account Transactions
- Wire Transfer Instructions

When you are *no longer* our customer, we continue to share your information as described in this notice.

# How?

All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons Alternative Strategies Income Fund chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.

Reasons we can share your personal information	Does Alternative Strategies Income Fund share?	Can you limit this sharing?
For our everyday business purposes – such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders and legal investigations, or report to credit bureaus	Yes	No
For our marketing purposes – to offer our products and services to you	No	We don't share
For joint marketing with other financial companies	No	We don't share
For our affiliates' everyday business purposes – information about your transactions and experiences	No	We don't share
For our affiliates' everyday business purposes – information about your creditworthiness	No	We don't share
For nonaffiliates to market to you	No	We don't share

Questions?	Call 1-833-860-1407
------------	---------------------

# Who we are

Who is providing this notice?	Alternative Strategies Income Fund
-------------------------------	------------------------------------

# What we do

How does Alternative Strategies Income Fund protect my personal information?	To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that comply with federal law. These measures include computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.  Our service providers are held accountable for adhering to strict policies and procedures to prevent any misuse of your nonpublic personal information.
How does Alternative Strategies Income Fund collect my personal information?	We collect your personal information, for example, when you  Open an account Provide account information Give us your contact information Make deposits or withdrawals from your account Make a wire transfer Tell us where to send the money Tells us who receives the money Show your government-issued ID Show your driver's license We also collect your personal information from other companies.
Why can't I limit all sharing?	<ul> <li>Federal law gives you the right to limit only</li> <li>Sharing for affiliates' everyday business purposes – information about your creditworthiness</li> <li>Affiliates from using your information to market to you</li> <li>Sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you</li> <li>State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing.</li> </ul>

# **Definitions**

Affiliates	Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies.  • Alternative Strategies Income Fund does not share with our affiliates.
Nonaffiliates	Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies  • Alternative Strategies Income Fund does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.
Joint marketing	A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market financial products or services to you.  • Alternative Strategies Income Fund doesn't jointly market.

# **PROSPECTUS**

Alternative Strategies Income Fund Class A Shares (LTAFX) Class C Shares (LTCFX) Class I Shares (LTIFX) of Beneficial Interest

**October 1, 2023** 

# Investment Adviser SCG Asset Management, LLC

All dealers that buy, sell or trade the Fund's shares, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus when acting on behalf of the Fund's Distributor.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus. The Fund has not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. The Fund is not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.